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OUR HISTORY

CANADIA BANK was established and The COMPLETION OF CANADIA
opened its VERY FIRST BRANCH IN TOWER was a proud moment for all,
CAMBODIA ON NOVEMBER 11 which remained the tallest building

in Cambodia from 2009 to 2014.

1991 »2009

OUR MOST PROFITABLE YEAR ON RECORD with net
earnings exceeding US$122 million; this reflected the

hard work, dedication, and perseverance of our team and

the trust from our customers.

»2019

»2003

WON GLOBAL CASH PAYMENT AND
CASH MANAGEMENT GOLDEN AWARD,
recognized by HSBC USA with an award
that cemented Canadia Bank as Cambodia’s

leading bank.

2013

MOBILE AND INTERNET BANKING
WERE LAUNCHED for customers to
access our products, services, and
accounts 24/7/365 and WE OPENED
OUR 50™ BRANCH.

» 2022

and Beyond

THE FIRST SMART BRANCH WAS OPENED IN
SAEN SOKH, we reached more than 400 SELF-
SERVICE DIGITAL BANKING MACHINES, we
grew to 4,000 EMPLOYEES AND COUNTING,
and we are continuously and heavily investing in our
digital transformation initiatives to provide the best-
in-class services to our customers. WE ARE PROUD
OF OUR LOCAL HERITAGE AND WE ARE HERE
TO STAY.



Our Smart Branches are digital hubs that offer full-banking services equipped
MART BRAN H E with the latest self-service digital devices providing the customers with
smooth and convenient banking experiences.
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OUR SELF-SERVICE

Open an account, Deposit Cash or Cheque and Withdraw Cash, and

D I G I I AL D EVI c Es Request for a Debit Card by yourself conveniently. The ATMs, Cash Recycling

Machines, and Smart Card-Embossing Machines are available to customers
24/7/365.
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THE ALL-NEW CANADIA BANK
CANADIA BANK APP CARDS

Experience fast and easy banking services with just a few clicks, more Shop for your favorite items easily, conveniently, and securely without
features, and collect points and get special rewards. carrying cash using Canadia Bank credit or debit cards.
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CORPORATE MISSION

To be the best partner to our customers and employees by leveraging on our people,
technology and service delivery.

WE ARE
To be recognised as the best bank in Cambodia.

CORE VALUES

TRUST

CORPORATE PROFILE We build Trust with Integrity with our customers and
Teamwork with our colleagues
Canadia Bank is a long-established and leading local full-service commercial bank in

Cambodia. We are one of the pioneer financial institutions that played a crucial role in
the nationwide economic rebuilding efforts. The Bank was fully privatized in 1998. With
a worldwide network of banking relationships and a solid base of local and international
customers, Canadia Bank is one of the largest commercial banks by balance sheet and

holds commanding market shares in loans and deposits. ch—o OWNERSHIP

Canadia Bank provides a wide array of market-leading banking products and services We take ownership and seek win-win solutions.

including Deposits, Loans, Digital Payments, Foreign Exchange, Local and International
Remittances, Debit and Credit Cards, Cash Management, Project Financing, and Stock

Brokering.
Canadia Bank’s established institutional strength and value-added banking products and O

services are the fundamental components of our successful business relationship with
our customers and shareholders. With 65 operating branches and more than 400 self-

service digital devices, our service-oriented and customer-focused branches throughout
1y
N\ '
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CUSTOMER SERVICE
We provide our Customers with the Best Quality
Service by listening and attending to their needs
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PERFORMANCE-DRIVEN

We adhere to “One Bank” drive for performance and
celebrate success.

the country are the frontline of delivering high standards of banking services. Through our
digital transformation initiatives, the Bank is constantly unveiling more digital solutions
and best-in-class products and services to provide excellent customer experience.

INNOVATION

We do continuous Innovation for better ways to serve
our customers and the Bank
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MESSAGE FROM THE
CHAIRMAN
& CEO

Dear Shareholders,

In 2022, the global economy has shown signs of a rebound, but some challenges remain including
supply chain disruptions from the ongoing war between Russia and Ukraine causing a hike in commodity
prices, especially fuel and raw materials. Despite geopolitical tensions and global inflation, Cambodia’s
economy continues to recover with a growth rate of 5.1% in 2022 driven by effective Covid-19 health
policy and management, reopening the domestic economy, increasing external demand and resilient
recovery of tourism. Cambodia also successfully hosted the 40" Asean Summits and related meetings.
In addition, during the year, Cambodia also joined the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership
("RCEP") and the Cambodia-China Free Trade Agreement (“CCFTA") to boost Cambodia’s agriculture
and agro-processing industries.

During the year, the National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC") continued to maintain an accommodative
and pragmatic stance by keeping the capital conservation buffer at 1.25% and the reserve requirement

rate at 7% for all currencies to restore economic activities and liquidity in the banking sector. As a
result, the banking sector remains strong and resilient, with total assets increasing by 14.5% to US$79.7
billion, total loans increasing by 20.2% to US$56.1 billion, and total deposits increasing by 11.3% to
US$44.6 billion. As financial inclusion continues expanding, the number of deposit accounts increased
from 12.7 million to 14.3 million and the number of loan accounts increased from 3.4 million to 3.7
million. Furthermore, NBC officially launched the KHQR system to facilitate interbank payments and
drive financial technology innovations in the banking and financial sector.
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Canadia Bank’s Position

Despite intense competition and challenges, our interest income increased by 8%, driven mainly
from interest income from fund placement which resulted in a 7% total revenue growth compared to
previous year. Appropriate cost discipline allowed us to maintain low cost to income ratio at 28.5%
(2021: 28.1%) enabling us to generate a net profit of US$ 129 million, making us the 7t largest taxpayer
in the country. From the additional injection of US$ 70 million, our paid-up capital has increased to
US$ 650 million. This reflects the commitment of our shareholders in the continued sustainable growth
of the Bank. Despite headwinds and intense competition, our loans reached US$4.94 billion in which
the proportion of KHR loan was 11% exceeding the regulatory requirement of NBC while we are able
to maintain a healthy loan-to-deposit ratio of 82.8%.

Our strong funding, liquidity and capital position were maintained with Capital Adequacy Ratio
("CAR") Tier 1 at 19.6% and Solvency Ratio at 22.5%. Our Liquidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR") stood high
at 133.2% well above the minimum regulatory requirement. We are resilient and well-positioned to
pursue growth opportunities and buffer for contingencies.

Improving customer experience and continuous innovation are the core focus of our digital transformation
initiatives. Our digital touchpoints and services that include mobile banking, self-service banking through
ATM, Cash Recycling Machine (“CRM”") with cheque deposit function, Virtual Teller Machines (“VTM"),
and Smart Card Embossing Machines (“SEM”) are in operation to serve our customers. Our first Smart
Branch at Saen Sok is the digital hub equipped with the latest digital self-service machines to promote
efficient services to all customers was opened in October 2022. More smart branches are in-line to be
established with objective to increase the on-boarding and servicing of customers digitally. During the
year, a total of 47 new machines, including both 37 ATMs and 3 CRMs and 7 VTMs were additionally
installed. As of December 2022, we have 65 branches with 347 ATMs, 46 CRMs and 7 VTMs installed
nationwide at key strategic locations to ease customers into self-service banking. While we continue
to invest in new machines, we remain mindful to invest appropriately as we also promote the usage of
our digital channels to our customers.

SME and Consumer businesses remain strong and show remarkable growth with a total loan of US$1,910
million provided to nearly 24,000 SME and Consumer Loan customers. Canadia Bank is one of the
leading lenders offering loan of US$59 million to more than 500 SMEs in a Co-financing Schemes 1 and
2 with SME Bank of Cambodia to support SMEs to recover from the impact of Covid-19. To empower
woman and young entrepreneurs, we also launched the unsecured loan guaranteed by the Credit
Guarantee Corporation of Cambodia (“CGCC") to the members of Young Entrepreneurs Association
of Cambodia (YEAC) and Cambodia Women Entrepreneur Association (“CWEA”").

To promote cross-border business, Canadia Bank was the first bank in Cambodia to sign a Credit Facility
Agreement with Export-Import (“EXIM”) Bank of Thailand to improve financial access and inclusion by
providing business loans to investors and entrepreneurs of Thai franchises and related businesses in
Cambodia. During the year, Canadia Bank also partnered with TrueMoney, one of Cambodia’s largest
fintech brands, to offer expanded cash withdrawal and cash-out services to customers nationwide to
make withdrawing money and cashing out money transfers and remittances easier for customers. This
partnership is also in line with Canadia Bank’s Financial Inclusion priorities. Canadia Bank was the only
local bank which entered into an agreement with Cambodian PPSHV Expressway Co., Ltd to offer an
automatic toll fee payment and non-stop driving through ETC Lane at the Phnom Penh-Sihanoukville
("PPSHV") Expressway using OBU device.
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We were delighted and honored to receive the following accolades and awards which is a testament to
our dedication and commitment to excellence in our delivery of products and services to our customers:

General Department of Taxation

* "“Gold Tax Compliance Certificate”. This is a recognition of our tax compliance and
contribution to the state revenue as the 7" largest taxpayer in Cambodia in 2022.

The Asian Banker

e “Best Managed Bank and Best CEO in Cambodia in 2022". Given every three years, this
award program has recognized Canadia Bank as a leading institution in the Cambodian
financial service industry.

Asiamoney

e “Best Domestic Bank 2022". This award is given to Canadia Bank for its resiliency, steady
refocusing and diversification of its business lines, and strong commitment to digital
transformation initiatives to improve customers’ experiences.

World HRD Congress:

e "“Dream Company to Work For in 2022". This award is a recognition of our culture and
collective effort to be the best partner to our colleagues.

International Finance Award

e “Best Domestic Bank 2022". Canadia Bank is the first and only local commercial bank that
won this award four times over the last 5 years. This recognition was given for our commitment
in providing the best-in-class services and developing innovative products and services to
make financial accessibility easier for our customers.

e “Best SME Bank 2022". We won the award twice in 2018 and 2022. This award is a testament
to our efforts and success in customer-centricity and strong focus in SME segment.

Outlook for 2023

The global economy is expected to face continued headwinds as the near-term outlook remains
challenging. Despite weaker global demand and uncertainties, Cambodia’s economic outlook is
positive and expected to register a growth of at least 6% in 2023 led by ongoing tourism recovery,
higher growth in service sector and moderate inflation.

Despite strong competition in both service quality and pricing, we are optimistic on the resiliency of
the Cambodia banking industry. We believe the Government and NBC will continue its pragmatic
policy to support and accelerate the economic recovery.

Canadia Smart Banking at Head Office and IFL Branch will be opened to offer our customers a full-
banking services and equipped with the latest digital machines. More Smart Branches will be opened
in 2023 and our customers will gain more satisfaction and convenience from these initiatives. In
addition, the All-New Canadia Bank App will be launched and our customers will experience a fast and
easy banking with more functions and services. Moving forward, the Bank will continue to add more
services and products on the Mobile App such as international fund transfer, card functions, loyalty
programs to attract more customers so as meeting our customers’ needs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is a commercial bank operating in accordance with the Cambodian Law
on Commercial Enterprises and under the supervision of the National Bank of
Cambodia (“NBC" or “the Central Bank”), pursuant to the Law on Banking and
Financial Institutions of Cambodia and in accordance with the Banking Licence
No. 05 issued by the NBC, since 1991. The Bank’s licence was renewed for an
indefinite period following the NBC's Prakas No. B7-06-207, dated 13 September
2006.

Canadia Bank Plc. is committed to conduct business in a prudent manner and
to uphold the highest standard of effective corporate governance. The Bank
develops and maintains appropriate internal control and risk management
systems in compliance with the National Bank of Cambodia’s (NBC) guidelines
and principles of effective corporate governance to achieve consistent strong
performance results, sustainable growth, and strong reputation and branding.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

The Bank has always recognized the importance of disclosing information that is necessary for
stakeholders and regulators. The Board of Directors (Board) is responsible for the preparation of the
Bank’s financial statement. The Board assigned the review of the financial statements to the Audit
Committee to ensure they are accurate, reliable and in compliance with the NBC’s guidelines and
Cambodian Accounting Standards. The annual report includes the audited financial statements and
other relevant information, and is published and disseminated to stakeholders. In addition, the Bank
publishes the annual audited financial statements on its website at www.canadiabank.com.kh.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The highest standards of professionalism, ethics, integrity and honesty are expected of all employees
of the Bank. Staff and management are required to perform their work diligently and honestly, placing
first the interests of the Bank. In addition, all staff and management understand, accept and abide by
the Bank’s Code of Conduct, which is as follows:

o Not to solicit or to receive any solicited basis gifts, commissions, kickbacks or valuables of any
kind from customers;

. Not to use their position to conduct private business;

. Not to conduct in any acts, behaviors or arrangements causing damages to the Bank;

. Not to engage in any acts, behaviors or arrangements causing damages to the Bank’s reputation
and/or financial interest; and

. Maintain and safeguard of confidential information.

INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Bank implemented various initiatives in order to establish an internal control system, which is in
line with generally accepted standards, and the NBC's regulations and guidelines. The Bank’s internal
control structure includes the following:

1. Audit Committee is charged with the duty and responsibility of reviewing the Bank’s financial
reports to ensure that they are accurate and adequately disclosed. The committee is responsible
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for ensuring that the Bank’s internal control and internal audit functions are adequate, appropriate
and effective. Along with external and internal auditors, the committee reviews the systems on
a regular basis.

2. The Board’s Internal Control and Compliance Committee established an appropriate internal
control structure, system and process to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage significant risks
that may affect the achievement of business objectives. Compliance matters are reported to
the Board, which provides a holistic and overall view of all compliance matters across the Bank’s
operations.

3. Internal Audit Division is responsible for performing the annual risk-based audit. The audit is
prioritized and scoped according to an assessment of financial and operational risk exposure
of the Bank’s head office, including key operational divisions, and branch operations under the
direct supervision and guidance of the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Division reports
directly to the Audit Committee.

4. Internal Control and Compliance Department is responsible for providing recommendations to
ensure that the Bank is compliant with the rules and regulations issued by relevant authorities, as
well as the Bank's internal policies and procedure. Internal Control and Compliance Department
reports directly to the Board's Internal Control and Compliance Committee.

5. The Bank has in place an appropriate “Whistle Blowing” policy. The Chairman of the Board
or the Chairman of the Audit Committee reviews anonymous complaints that employees may
raise about possible misappropriation, malpractice, malfeasance or conflicts of interest. The
complaints are independently investigated and followed-up.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board has been realigned to strengthen its strategic capacity, overall business
policy development, and provide leadership for management and staff. As at 31 December 2022,
the Board is comprised of Eleven (11) members, Four (4) of whom are Independent, Non-Executive
Directors and One (1) of whom is Non-Executive Director.

Position/Type of Directorship

Name of Director

Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se

Chairman

Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director

Mr. Vann Charles Chuon

Executive Director

Dr. Pung Carolyne Executive Director

Mr. Chen Lee Yiaw Hui

Executive Director

Mr. Yee Con Long Executive Director

Mr. Leow Ming Fong Independent, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Peter Michael Buerger
Mr. John Meinhold

Independent, Non-Executive Director

Independent, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Phong Nguyen Independent, Non-Executive Directo’

Mr. Lim Socheat Non-Executive Director
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Elndependent non-executive directors of the Bank are directors who meet qualifications and
requirements specified by the NBC's regulations. The Bank compiled The Director Independence
Standards for the Board of Directors, adopted to make its independent determinations with the
exercise of a director’s judgment independent of the management.

Roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated, which is consistent with the corporate principle of
balancing power and authority. In addition, as a principle of good corporate governance, all directors
are subject to re-nomination and re-election every three (3) years, which is provided in the Bank’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association. All appointments of directors must be approved by the
NBC.

Meetings

The Board schedules meetings at least once every three (3) months. In 2022, the Board held Five (5)
meetings.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board directs the Bank in the conduct of its affairs. In doing so, the Board undertakes a fiduciary
role to ensure that corporate responsibility and ethical standards are met, and to ensure the viability of
the Bank in the best of interest of the Bank's shareholders while also taking into account the interests
of other stakeholders. The Board is responsible for supervising the business operations, establishing
corporate governance policies with practical guidelines to ensure the functioning of its duties, setting
strategic direction and long-term goals of the Bank, ensuring that adequate resources are available to
meet strategic objectives, and establishing a risk framework and strategy for risks to be assessed and
managed.

The Board formed committees which are divided into two level authorities: (1) the Board Committees
and; (2) Executive Management Committee, with particular terms of reference for regulatory purposes
when it needs assistance or when an issue requires more resources and attention. This allows the Board
to concentrate on broader strategic issues and directions.

The Board may either delegate some of its powers to the committee, enabling it to act directly, or may
require recommendations of the committee to be approved by the Board. The exact definition of the
powers of the committee will be governed in its Board’s approved Charter.

1. Board Committees include: Audit Committee (AC), Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC),
Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee, Board Internal Control and Compliance
Committee and Board New Product and Activities Committee.

2. Executive Managementcommittees closely monitorand oversee the Bank's day-to-day operations,
and report actual progress to the Board on a regular basis. These committees include: Canadia
Management Committee (CMC), Credit Committee (CC), Assets and Liabilities Management
Committee (ALCO), and Human Resource Committee (HRC), Executive Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (ERMC), Information Technology Steering Committee (ITSC). Each
committee has written terms of reference that describe the responsibilities of its member for
day-to-day operation of the Bank.
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For the purpose of compliance with the NBC guidelines, the Board committees are described as
follows:

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Purpose
The primary objective of the Audit Committee (as a standing committee of the Board) is to assist the

Board in the effective discharge of its fiduciary responsibilities for corporate governance, financial
reporting and internal control.

Composition

At the end of 2022, the Audit Committee is comprised of Four (4) members from the Board, and led
by one independent director with expertise in accounting, finance and auditing.

Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. Leow Ming Fong Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Dr. Pung Carolyne Member (Executive Director)
Mr. Vann Charles Chuon

Mr. John Meinhold

Member (Executive Director)

Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Authority and Main Responsibility

. The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity within its jurisdiction.
The Committee shall have unrestricted access to both the internal and external auditors and to
all employees of the Bank. The Committee may, with the approval of the Board, consult legal or
other professionals where they consider necessary to carry out their duties.

. The Audit Committee shall consider the appointment of external auditors, audit fee and any
questions or registration or dismissal.

. The Committee shall review the financial reports and report to the Board.

. The Committee shall review the report of internal audits and monitor the performance of the

internal audit department on regular basis.
. The Committee shall perform any other tasks as directed by the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee schedules meetings at least once every three (3) months. The Audit Committee
held Six (6) meetings during 2022.
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THE BOARD RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Purpose

The Board Risk Management Committee actively manages the risk inherent in the Bank. In order to
manage risks, the Board defines and forms the Committee to oversee the risk profile and approve the
risk management framework.

In addition, the Committee shall take responsibilities by the Board's discretionary power to set risk
tolerance, approve frameworks, and policies and procedures for effective management of risks.

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board Risk Management Committee is comprised of five (5) members
from the Board:

Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. John Meinhold Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Vann Charles Chuon
Mr. Chen Lee Yiaw Hui

Mr. Peter Michael Buerger

Member (Executive Director)

Member (Executive Director)

(
Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
(

Mr. Phong Nguyen Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Authority and Main Responsibility
The Committee will recommend to the Board the parameters of the Bank’s risk framework, monitoring

the alignment of risk profile with risk tolerance as defined. The Committee’s oversight responsibilities
include, but not limited to, the following elements:

Credit Risk

. Review and approve the framework for the management of credit risk in accordance with the
Credit Policies and Procedures manual.

. Review and monitor the risk profile, performance and management of the credit portfolio.

. Review and develop appropriate credit risk policies.

. Review the Bank’s bad debt performance and provision for loan loss (general and specific

provision in compliance with the NBC guidelines).

Market Risk

Review and approve the framework for the management of market risk.

Review and monitor the Bank’s market risk performance and exposure against limits.

Review and develop appropriate market risk policies.

Review and approve market risk limits including but not limited to Value at Risk Limits and Net
Interest Income at Risk Limits.

. Review structural interest rate risk positions for the Bank.
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Liquidity Risk

. Review and approve the framework for the management of liquidity risk.

. Review and monitor the Bank’s liquidity position and requirements in consultation with the Assets
and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) and the development of appropriate liquidity
risk policies.

. Review and monitor the Bank’s funding plan and funding requirements.

Operational Risk

. Review and approve the framework for the management of operational risk.
Review and monitor the performance of operational risk management and internal controls.
. Review the development and ongoing review of appropriate operational risk policies.

Compliance Risk

. Review the compliance risk processes that are in place to anticipate and effectively manage the
impact of regulatory change on the Bank’s operations;

. Oversee compliance by the Bank with applicable laws, regulations and regulatory requirements
that may impact the Bank’s risk profile;

. Discuss with management and external auditors any correspondences with NBC, regulators or

government agencies, and any published reports that raise issues material to the Bank.

Reputation and Other Risks

Review and monitor the performance of reputation risk management & controls.
. Review and monitor the performance of other risk types as appropriate.

Meetings

The Board Risk Management Committee schedules meeting at least once every three (3) months. The
Board Risk Management Committee held Six (6) meetings in 2022.

THE BOARD REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Purpose
Committee members are appointed by the Board with the following purposes:

. Assist the Board to develop and administer a fair and transparent procedure for setting policy
on the remuneration of directors and senior management of the Bank, and determine their
remuneration packages.

. Review selection and appointment practices of the Bank and the processes for evaluating the
performance of the Board, Board committees and executive management committee members.
Monitor and present recommendations regarding the Board governance issues.

Composition

At the end of 2022, the Committee is comprised of Three (3) members from the Board and the
Management:
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Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. Peter Michael Buerger Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Dr. Pung Carolyne Member (Executive Director)

Ms. Sophea Sealin Member (Corporate Secretary)

Authority and Main Responsibility for Remuneration

. Make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure of the Bank for all remuneration
of directors and senior management, and establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration.

. Recommend to the Board the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and
senior management, including without limitation: base salaries, deferred compensation, stock
option and any benefits in kind, pension rights and incentive payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to
the Chairman on the remuneration of non-executive directors. The Committee may consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the group and the market, and desirability of performance-
based remuneration.

. Review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.
. Review and approve the compensation payable to executive directors and senior management

in connection with any loss or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the Bank.

. Review and approve compensation arrangements related to dismissal or removal of directors
for misconduct, and ensure that such arrangements are determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

o Provide advice to the Chairman of the Board regarding remuneration for supplementary duties
and liabilities of Directors who are also members of a Board Committee.

Authority and Main Responsibility for Nomination

° Assess and enhance necessary and desirable competencies of the Board, its committees and
directors.

. Make recommendation on the size and composition of the Board, including succession plans to
enable an appropriate balance of skills, experience and expertise to be maintained.

. Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of directors.

. Review a process for evaluation of the performance of the Board.

. Identify candidates and review nominations for appointments of members of the Board and
senior management.

° Review succession planning for the Chairman, alternate chairman, CEO, EVP and senior
management, and talent review in the Bank.

. Monitor and make recommendations to the Board on board governance issues including board
policies and practices as necessary or appropriate to enable the Board to operate effectively and
efficiently.

. Monitor developing trends, initiatives or proposals in relation to board governance issues in

Cambodia and elsewhere in order to determine the extent to which such initiatives impact the
Bank and make recommendations to the Board on any changes to be implemented.
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Meetings
The Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee schedules meetings at least once every three

(3) months to assess matters as assigned by the Board. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
held Five (5) meetings in 2022.

THE BOARD OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Purpose
This Committee was established in pursuant to the NBC's Prakas No. B7.010.172 Pro Kor, Internal
Control of Bank and Financial Institutions. The Committee’s functions are setup to ensure independent

reporting to the Board on the Bank’s compliance performance in a timely and effective manner, making
the decision-making process efficient and responsive.

Composition

The Committee is comprised of Five (5) members including:

Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. Leow Ming Fong Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Dr. Pung Carolyne Member (Executive Director)
Mr. Chen Lee Yiaw Hui
Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan

Mr. John Meinhold

Member (Executive Director)

(
Member (Executive Director)
(

Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Authority and Responsibility

. Prepare and present to the Board a written report on the compliance assessment and
corresponding recommendations reported by the Chief Compliance Officer.

. Take and keep minutes and other notes of quarterly and ad-hoc meetings.

. The membership of the Committee shall be updated from time to time, and approved by the
Board.

. Report annually to the NBC according to the NBC's requirements.
Meetings

This Board Internal control and Compliance Committee schedules meetings at least once every three
(3) months to assess matters as assigned by the Board. In 2022, the Committee held Five (5) meetings.
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THE BOARD NEW ACTIVITIES AND PRODUCTS
COMMITTEE

Purpose
This Committee was established in pursuant to the NBC's Prakas No. B7.010.172 Pro Kor, Internal
Control of Bank and Financial Institutions. The Committee’s functions are setup to ensure that all new

products, activities, market entries, business processes and systems has fully assessed the control
infrastructure, operational risks and economic value to the Bank are effectively and efficiently managed.

Composition

The Committee is comprised of Four (4) members including:

Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. Peter Michael Buerger Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan Member (Executive Director)
Mr. Vann Charles Chuon

Mr. Phong Nguyen

Member (Executive Director)

Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Authority and Responsibilities

. Prepare and present to the Board a written report on the new products, activities, market entries
and business processes and systems of the Bank.

. Assist the Board in the oversight and eventual approval of the development and introduction of
new products and activities or variations thereof in accordance with the

. New Product Program.

. Monitor relevant market developments and make recommendations to the Board regarding the

Bank’s products, activities and services.
Meetings

This Board New Products and Activities Committee schedules meetings at least once every three (3)
months to assess matters as assigned by the Board. In 2022, the Committee held Five (5) meetings.
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CANADIA BANK CARES

Canadia Bank Cares, our Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives,
is an important part of the Bank’s overall strategy to contribute to the
development of Cambodia. We are committed to making a positive impact
on the lives of Cambodians and to help build a more sustainable future for
the country.

Canadia Bank Cares for the Customers
and Community

Supporting a Mine-Free Cambodia by 2025
|
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In response to the call of the Royal Government to work together to achieve a mine-free Cambodia
by 2025, Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se, Chairman of Canadia Bank, has donated USD 1 million to
the Royal Government of Cambodia through Prime Minister Samdech Techo Hun Sen. The donation
was made to support the Government’s efforts in freeing Cambodia from the threat of landmines
and explosives that jeopardize socioeconomic and psychosocial well-being of the communities.

In addition, through sponsoring the Malaysian Business Chamber of Commerce’s Charity Gala Dinner,
Canadia Bank has helped the Sdok Commune, Kong Posei District in Kampong Speu province to be
declared as “mine-free.”

Timely Disaster Response

As the floods affected families in many provinces across
Cambodia, Canadia Bank has contributed to the relief
operations of the affected families through the donation
made through the Association of Banks in Cambodia
and the National Bank of Cambodia. The disaster-relief
funds were used to help families and communities in
Kampong Thom to purchase farming materials and
necessities to assist those whose livelihoods have been
severely affected by the floods.

Helping save lives through blood donation

In collaboration with National Blood Transfusion Center and Intercare Medical Center, Canadia Bank and
Group employees participated in the donation drive called “Give Blood on Christmas” last December 2022.
This showed the commitment and solidarity of the Bank's employees to help the community to ensure that
there is a reliable source of stored blood available for patients in need.

Continuous support to Cambodian Red Cross and COVID-19
Recovery Fund

Proud of its local heritage, Canadia Bank has been a consistent contributor to improving the welfare
of Cambodian people. In 2022, Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se has continued to donate and support
Cambodian Red Cross’ missions in helping vulnerable communities and victims of unforeseen disasters.
In addition, Neak Okhna Dr. Pung Kheav Se has also sponsored families who are severely impacted by
COVID-19 on their road to economic or medical recovery.
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Running for children’s welfare

In October 2022, Canadia Bank and Group employees participated in the Family Fun Run at Elysee,
Koh Pich. Aimed to enhance wellness, improve engagement, and strengthen working relationships with
Canadia Group, this Fun Run has also raised funds for Cambodian Children’s Fund (CCF), a charitable
organization that aims to transform the lives of the most impoverished, marginalized, and neglected
children in Cambodia. The funds raised were handed over to CCF to help in their programs of providing
underprivileged children with high-quality education, leadership training, and direct support programs.

Empowering the
underprivileged children

Another activity that supported the empowerment
of Cambodian children was the Bank's donation to
Raksa Koma Foundation, an NGO that promotes
health, welfare, and interest of Cambodian children
across all backgrounds. The Bank’s contribution
has helped in the implementation of healthcare-
related projects. These included mental awareness
programs, ear and hearing care, smile care through
cleft palate operations, and more.

Championing Women'’s
Causes

Canadia Bank constantly supports the annual
fundraising efforts of Women's International Group
(WIG) by sponsoring its annual Christmas Fair.
The proceeds of the event go to various charity
organizations  supporting women’s livelihood
programs.
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Canadia Bank Cares for Financial
Inclusion and Financial Literacy

Empowering SMEs through Financial Literacy

As a leading commercial bank, Canadia Bank has supported the “Access to Finance Program”
co-organized by the Association of Banks in Cambodia (ABC), the Cambodian Microfinance Association
(CMA), and Young Entrepreneurs Association of Cambodia (YEAC). The program promoted financial
literacy and inclusion among young business owners, women entrepreneurs, and selected SME groups
in Cambodia. Canadia Bank was one of the participating financial institutions that provided training
programs, financial seminars, and business assessment acceleration programs.

Canadia Bank Cares for the Culture,
Arts, and Sports

Enriching children’s lives with sports

CANADIA BANK
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Sports should be accessible to Cambodian children across all economic backgrounds. Together with CIS
Roller Dome, Canadia Bank has sponsored 40 youth students from lower socio-economic backgrounds
in inline hockey training and competition. Over the period of 8 months, the Youth Hockey competition
has provided opportunities for the students to get healthy, build skills and confidence, reduce stress,
and cultivate friendships with other players.

Building a Strong National Team

Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se, Chairman of Canadia Bank, has contributed funds to Cambodia
Basketball Federation to support their mission to usher the growth of the sport in Cambodia. As
basketball is quickly becoming a popular sport locally, the contribution is an important step in building
and training Cambodian youth and turning them into professional players and making them a force to
be reckon with during the regional games.

Honing Future Youth Leaders

Canadia Bank helped honed future leaders by sponsoring the 8th Summer Youth Camp under the
theme “Youth Development in the Digital Society: The Rising Star in the North” organized by the
Ministry of Education, Youth, and Sports. Attendees of the summer camp were able to share new
experiences, knowledge, solidarity, and responsibilities, paving way for them to find their talents and
enhance life skills which will be useful for their future career paths.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
| | el | me| aw

Year-ended 31 December, 2022

Gross Revenue

Net Profit 129 125 131 122 91
Total Assets 7,634 7,647 7,074 6,537 5,920
Shareholders' Equity 1,182 978 854 722 600
Total Loans and Advances (Net) 4,818 4,739 4,283 3,989 3,310
Total Deposits 5,976 6,121 5,608 5,308 4,905
Earnings per Share (US$) 0.20 0.22 0.27 0.31 0.27
Net Worth 1,170 994 947 818 642
Return on Shareholders' Equity (ROE) 10.90% 12.82% 15.28% 16.96% 15.12%
Return on Assets 1.69% 1.64% 1.85% 1.87% 1.53%
Interest Margin to Gross Income 48.39% 47.83% 50.02% 54.62% 48.36%
Cost to Income Ratio 28.12% 27.89% 29.68% 26.16% 26.69%
Gross Loans to Deposits 82.42% 78.24% 77.75% 76.90% 69.06%
Solvency Ratio 22.53% 20.29% 21.18% 19.77% 18.41%
Liquidy Coverage Ratio (LCR) 133.21%  125.09% 136.00%  134.36%  173.85%

Note: These figures pertained to the operations of Canadia Bank Plc. only and are not consolidated

with its Subsidiaries.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the Directors) hereby submits their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Canadia Bank Plc. (the Bank) and its
subsidiaries (together the Group) and the separate financial statements of the
Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CANADIA BANK PLC.

The Bank is a commercial bank operating in accordance with the Cambodian Law on Commercial
Enterprises and under the supervision of the National Bank of Cambodia (NBC or the central bank),
pursuant to the Law on Banking and Financial Institutions of Cambodia and in accordance with the
Banking Licence No. 05 issued by the NBC, since 1991. The Bank’s licence was renewed for an indefinite
period following the NBC's Prakas No. B7-06-207, dated 13 September 2006.

HOLDING COMPANY

The holding company of the Group is Canadia Investment Holding Plc. (CIHP), a public limited company
incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank consist of operations of core banking business and provisions of
related financial services through the Bank’s head office and various branches in Phnom Penh and in
provinces.

There was no significant change in the nature of these principal activities during the year.

THE SUBSIDIARIES

In February 2010, Cana Securities Ltd. (CSL) was incorporated in Cambodia as a wholly-owned
Subsidiary of the Bank. CSL received its securities underwriting licence from the Securities and
Exchange Regulator of Cambodia (SERC) on 20 October 2010. The principal activities of the CSL are
to provide securities-related services; these include, but are not limited to, securities underwriting,
dealing, brokerage and investment related services.

In August 2015, the Bank and CIHP together incorporated Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (CBL) in Lao People’s
Democratic Republic (P.D.R) and respectively own 68% and 32% (2021: 49% and 51%) of the equity
interest of CBL. The Bank has control over CBL and the rights to govern financial and operating policies
of CBL. CBL received its banking license from the Bank of Lao P.D.R on 14 August 2015. The principal
activities of CBL are to provide comprehensive banking and related financial services.
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RESULTS OF OPERATION

The results of financial performance for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated
and separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

DIVIDENDS

There was a dividend of US$70,000,000 appropriated from the retained earnings during the year (2021:
US$90,000,000) then reinvested in share capital, as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Bank increased its share capital from US$580,000,000 to US$650,000,000 during the year.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL LOANS AND ADVANCES

Before the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank were drawn up,
the Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off
of bad loans and advances or making of allowance for impairment losses, and satisfied themselves that
all known bad loans and advances had been written off and that adequate loss allowance has been
made for bad and doubtful loans and advances.

At the date of this report and based on the best of knowledge, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would render the amount written off for bad loans and advances or the amount
of the allowance for impairment losses in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the
Group and the Bank inadequate to any material extent.

ASSETS

Before the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank were prepared,
the Directors took reasonable steps to ensure that any assets which were unlikely to be realised in the
ordinary course of business, at their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and the
Bank, have been written down to an amount which they might be expected to realise.

At the date of this report and based on the best of knowledge, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would render the values attributed to the assets in the consolidated and separate
financial statements of the Group and the Bank misleading in any material respect.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

At the date of this report, there is:

A.  nocharge on the assets of the Group and the Bank which has arisen since the end of the financial
year which secures the liabilities of any other person, or

B.  no contingent liability in respect of the Group and the Bank that has arisen since the end of the
financial year other than in the ordinary course of banking business.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and the Bank has become enforceable, or is likely to
become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the
opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and the Bank to meet
its obligations as and when they fall due.
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CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise dealt with
in this report or the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank, which
would render any amount stated in the consolidated and separate financial statements misleading.

ITEMS OF UNUSUAL NATURE

The financial performance of the Group and the Bank for the financial year was not, in the opinion of
the Directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report
any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors, to
affect substantially the financial performance of the Group and the Bank for the current financial year
in which this report is made.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Directors holding office during the year and as at the date of this report
are:

Name of Director

Position/Type of Directorship

Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se Chairman

Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director

Mr. Vann Charles Chuon

Executive Director

Dr. Pung Carolyne Executive Director

Mr. Chen Lee Yiaw Hui

Executive Director

Mr. Yee Con Long Executive Director

Mr. Leow Ming Fong Independent, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Peter Michael Buerger
Mr. John Meinhold

Independent, Non-Executive Director

Independent, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Phong Nguyen Independent, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lim Socheat Non-Executive Director

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for ascertaining that the consolidated and separate financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group and the Bank as at 31 December
2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards (CIFRS).

In preparing these consolidated and separate financial statements, the Directors are required to:
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l. adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates and then apply them consistently;

. comply with the disclosure requirements of CIFRS or, if there have been any departures in the
interest of fair presentation, these have been appropriately disclosed, explained and quantified
in the consolidated and separate financial statements;

lIl. maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal controls;

IV.  prepare the consolidated and separate financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to assume that the Group and the Bank will continue operations in the foreseeable
future; and

V. effectively control and direct the Group and the Bank in all material decisions affecting
its operations and performance and ascertain that such have been properly reflected in the
consolidated and separate financial statements.

The Directors confirm that the Group and the Bank have complied with the above requirements in
preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements, together with the notes thereto,
which present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group and the Bank as at
31 December 2022 and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group and the Bank for the
year then ended in accordance with the Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards, were
approved by the Board of Directors.

Signed in accordance with an approval of the Board of Directors,

@ 4K

Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
31 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S
REPORT

To the Shareholders of Canadia Bank Plc.

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Canadia Bank Plc. (the Bank) and its
subsidiaries (the Group) and the separate financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2022, and
their consolidated and separate financial performance and their consolidated and separate cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards
(CIFRS).

What we have audited

The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

J the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,;

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information

The Bank’s separate financial statements comprise:

. the separate statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

. the separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

J the separate statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

° the separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the separate financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Cambodian International Standards on Auditing (CISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements of the Kampuchea
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Auditors’ Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants
and Auditors (KICPAA Code) that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in Cambodia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code and the ethical requirements of the KICPAA Code.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of
this auditor’s report are the directors’ report and supplementary financial information required by the
National Bank of Cambodia but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate
financial statements in accordance with CIFRS, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group and the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Bank's financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Bank's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group and the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

For PricewaterhouseCoopers (Cambodia) Ltd.

By Kuy Lim
Partner

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
31 March 2023
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CANADIA BANK PLC.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2022

Notes Us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
Assets
Cash on hand 4 330,255,669 1,359,663 445,178,556 1,813,657
Deposits and placements with other banks 5 637,084,445 2,622,877 409,016,012 1,666,331
Deposits and placements with the centra| 6 1,027,846,961 4,231,646 1,383,843,471 5,637,779

an

Loans and advances to customers 7 4,833,641,996 19,900,104 4,754,843,135 19,371,231
Investment securities 8 56,377,635 232,107 2,212,047 9,012
Statutory deposits with the central bank 9 454,461,193 1,871,017 443,393,082 1,806,383
Property and equipment 1 O 1 65,1 04,407 679,735 87,01 4,240 354,496
Investment properties 11 7,675,132 31,599 - -
Right-of-use assets 12 21,641,776 89,099 22,405,725 91,281
Intangible assets 13 1,537,936 6,332 1,371,294 5,587
Deferred tax assets - net 15 - - 9,350,918 38,096
Other assets 16 97,024,396 399,449 89,367,685 364,084
Total assets 7,632,651,546 31,423,628 7,647,996,165 31,157,937
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Deposits from other banks and financial 17 302,746,829 1,246,409 343,693,130 1,400,206
institutions
Deposits from customers 18 5,669,928,444 23,343,095 5,768,648,114 23,501,472
Borrowings 19 296,499,716 1,220,689 360,037,334 1,466,792
Lease liabilities 12 19,840,653 81,684 19,998,393 81,473
Employee benefits 20 8,193,038 33,731 13,170,272 53,656
Current income tax liability 21 25,860,633 106,468 25,813,464 105,164
Deferred tax liabilities - net 15 6,213,344 25,583 - -
Other liabilities 22 29,472,008 121,336 24,519,621 99,893
Subordinated debts 23 90,539,738 372,752 105,709,025 430,659
Total liabilities 6,449,294,403 26,551,747 6,661,589,353 27,139,315
Equity
Share capital 24 650,000,000 2,600,000 580,000,000 2,320,000
Reserves 25 219,056,414 968,380 135,656,819 579,624
Retained earnings 305,668,455 1,267,962 258,225,1 34 1,067,972
Attributable to owners 1,174,724,869 4,836,342 973,881,953 3,967,596
Non-controlling interests 8,632,274 35,539 12,524,859 51,026
Total equity 1,183,357,143 4,871,881 986,406,812 4,018,622
Total liabilities and equity 7,632,651,546 31,423,628 7,647,996,165 31,157,937

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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CANADIA BANK PLC.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Notes uss$ Million KHR uss$ Million KHR
Interest income 27 438,275,846 1,791,233 405,942,069 1,651,372
Interest expense 27 (215,969,571) (882,668) (201,259,279) (818,723)
Net interest income 27 222,306,275 908,565 204,682,790 832,649
Fee and commission income 28 13,746,676 56,183 14,234,942 57,908
Fee and commission expense 28 (2,721,107) (11,121) (2,083,494) (8,476)
Net fee and commission income 28 11,025,569 45,062 12,151,448 49,432
Other operating income 29 4,914,210 20,084 6,273,498 25,521
Total operating income 238,246,054 973,711 223,107,736 907,602
Personnel expenses 30 (36,147,115) (147,733) (34,202,224) (139,135)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 31 (9,642,817) (39,410) (9,039,327) (36,772)
Other operating expenses 32 (22,019,225) (89,993) (19,510,243) (79,368)
Total operating expenses (67,809,157) (277,136) (62,751,794) (255,275)
Operating profit before impairment 170,436,897 696,575 160,355,942 652,327
Impairment losses on financial instruments 33 (11,244,134) (45,955) (4,912,535) (19,984)
Profit before income tax 159,192,763 650,620 155,443,407 632,343
Income tax expense 34 (30,543,312) (124,831) (27,469,352) (111,745)
Profit for the year 128,649,451 525,789 127,974,055 520,598
Other comprehensive income
[tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign operation translation (6,198,657) (25,334) (3,130,231) (12,686)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Changes in the fair value of equity
investments at fair value through other 8 (844,536) (3,452) (403,207) (1,640)
comprehensive income
Re-measurement of employee benefits 20 (164,489) (672) (2,000,423) (8,138)
Deferred tax on re-measurement of employee 32898 134 _ _
benefits !
Revaluation surplus of lands and buildings 10 87,103,651 355,993 - -
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus (11,627,987) (47,524) - -
Derecognise of revaluation surplus as ~ ~
disposal of lands and buildings (67.216) @73)
Currency translation difference - 48,325 - 25,792
Other comprehensive income for the year 68,300,880 327,470 (5,601,077) 3,055
Total comprehensive income for the year 196,950,331 853,259 122,372,978 523,653
Profit is attributable to:
Owners of the Group 128,779,643 526,321 126,777,304 515,730
Non-controlling interests (130,192) (532) 1,196,751 4,868
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Group 200,773,980 868,886 122,772,645 524,903
Non-controlling interests (3,823,649) (15,627) (399,667) (1,250)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
CANADIA BANK
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CANADIA BANK PLC.
Separate Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2022

Notes uUs$ Million KHR uUs$ Million KHR
Assets
Cash on hand 4 329,211,861 1,355,365 444,035,258 1,809,000
Deposits and placements with other banks 5 641,496,319 2,641,040 402,501,792 1,639,792
Deposits and placements with the central 6 1,010,941,397 4,162,046 1,382,123,483 5,630,771
Loans and advances to customers 7 4,817,962,120 19,835,550 4,739,389,711 19,308,274
Investment securities 8 50,776,875 209,048 - -
Statutory deposits with the central bank 9 453,357,938 1,866,475 442,364,588 1,802,193
Property and equipment 10 165,176,806 680,033 86,907,073 354,059
Investment properties 11 7,675,132 31,599 - -
Right-of-use assets 12 21,641,776 89,099 22,405,725 91,281
Intangible assets 13 1,535,943 6,323 1,368,193 5,574
Investment in subsidiaries 14 39,005,880 160,587 29,005,880 118,170
Deferred tax assets - net 15 - - 9,336,760 38,038
Other assets 16 95,198,677 391,933 87,279,519 355,577
Total assets 7,633,980,724 31,429,098 7,646,717,982 31,152,729
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Deposits from other banks and financial 17 302,771,018 1,246,508 343,712,401 1,400,284
institutions
Deposits from customers 18 5,673,608,602 23,358,247 5,776,904,465 23,535,109
Borrowings 19 296,421,018 1,220,365 359,913,856 1,466,289
Lease liabilities 12 19,840,653 81,684 19,998,393 81,473
Employee benefits 20 8,178,072 33,669 13,153,632 53,588
Current income tax liability 21 25,805,468 106,241 25,779,866 105,027
Deferred tax liabilities - net 15 6,241,437 25,696 - -
Other liabilities 22 28,896,819 118,968 23,959,947 97,613
Subordinated debts 23 90,539,738 372,752 105,709,025 430,659
Total liabilities 6,452,302,825 26,564,130 6,669,131,585 27,170,042
Equity
Share capital 24 650,000,000 2,600,000 580,000,000 2,320,000
Reserves 25 226,305,799 998,135 139,556,468 595,431
Retained earnings 305,372,100 1,266,833 258,029,929 1,067,256
Total equity 1,181,677,899 4,864,968 977,586,397 3,982,687
Total liabilities and equity 7,633,980,724 31,429,098 7,646,717,982 31,152,729

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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CANADIA BANK PLC.

Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehen-

sive Income

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Notes uss$ Million KHR uss$ Million KHR
Interest income 27 436,961,433 1,785,861 404,595,608 1,645,895
Interest expense 27 (216,218,642) (883,686) (201,601,037) (820,113)
Net interest income 27 220,742,791 902,175 202,994,571 825,782
Fee and commission income 28 13,695,715 55,974 14,171,452 57,649
Fee and commission expense 28 (2,708,905) (11,071) (2,070,767) (8,424)
Net fee and commission income 28 10,986,810 44,903 12,100,685 49,225
Other operating income 29 5,525,089 22,581 5,613,759 22,837
Total operating income 237,254,690 969,659 220,709,015 897,844
Personnel expenses 30 (35,430,848) (144,806) (33,492,561) (136,248)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 31 (9,600,643) (39,238) (8,952,806) (36,420)
Other operating expenses 32 (21,696,338) (88,673) (19,123,675) (77,795)
Total operating expenses (66,727,829) (272,717) (61,569,042) (250,463)
Operating profit before impairment 170,526,861 696,942 159,139,973 647,381
Impairment losses on financial instruments 33 (11,306,144) (46,208) (6,440,247) (26,199)
Profit before income tax 159,220,717 650,734 152,699,726 621,182
Income tax expense 34 (30,473,288) (124,544) (27,415,472) (111,526)
Profit for the year 128,747,429 526,190 125,284,254 509,656
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Re-measurement of employee benefits 20 (164,489) (672) (2,000,423) (8,138)
Deferred tax on re-measurement of employee 32,898 134 - -
benefits
Revaluation surplus of lands and buildings 10 87,103,651 355,993 - -
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus (11,627,987) (47,524) - -
Derecognise of revaluation surplus as - - (67,216) (272)
disposal of lands and buildings
Currency translation difference - 48,160 - 25,516
Other comprehensive income for the year 75,344,073 356,091 (2,067,639) 17,106
Total comprehensive income for the year 204,091,502 882,281 123,216,615 526,762
Profit is attributable to:
Owners of the Bank 128,747,429 526,190 125,284,254 509,656
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Bank 204,091,502 882,281 123,216,615 526,762
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements.

1. GENERAL

Canadia Bank Plc. (the Bank), and its subsidiaries, Cana Securities Ltd. (CNS), are incorporated in the
Kingdom of Cambodia, and the other subsidiary, Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (CBL), is incorporated in Lao
P.D.R (together referred to as the Group).

The Bank is a commercial bank operating in accordance with the Cambodian Law on Commerecial
Enterprises and under the supervision of the National Bank of Cambodia (NBC or the central bank),
pursuant to the Law on Banking and Financial Institutions of Cambodia and in accordance with the
Banking Licence No. 05 issued by the NBC, since 1991. The Bank’s licence was renewed for an indefinite
period following the NBC's Prakas No. B7-06-207, dated 13 September 2006.

Canadia Investment Holding Plc. (CIHP), a public limited company incorporated in the Kingdom of
Cambodia, is the ultimate holding company of the Bank.

The principal activities of the Bank consist of the operation of core banking business and the provision
of related financial services through the Bank’s head office and various branches in Phnom Penh and
in the provinces.

The Bank’s registered office is currently located at No. 315, Ang Duong street, corner Monivong
Boulevard, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia. The Bank has a total of 63 branches located in Phnom
Penh and major provinces in Cambodia.

The consolidated and separate financial statements were authorised and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 31 March 2023.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated and separate
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared in accordance with Cambodian
International Financial Reporting Standards (CIFRS) which are based on all standards published by the
International Accounting Standard Board including other interpretations and amendments that may
occur in any circumstances to each standard.

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for:

o financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI),
. lands and buildings of property and equipment and investment property measured at
revalued amount, and
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o foreclosed properties (assets held for sales) measured at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

The Group and the Bank disclose the amount for each asset and liability that expected to be recovered
or settled no more than 12 months after the reporting period as current, and more than 12 months
after the reporting period as non-current.

The preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements in conformity with CIFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated and separate
financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

An English version of the consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared from
the consolidated and separate financial statements that are in the Khmer language. In the event of a
conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages, the Khmer language consolidated
and separate financial statements shall prevail.

2.2 New and amended accounting standards and interpretations
(@)  New and amended accounting standards and interpretations adopted

The Group and the Bank have applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing on 1 January 2022:

. Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments to
CIAS16,

. Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to CIAS 37, and

. Annual Improvements to CIFRS Standards 2018-2020

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts of recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for
31 December 2022 reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Group and the Bank.
These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.3 Principles of consolidation of the subsidiary

Cana Securities Ltd. and Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. are subsidiaries over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Bank has controls over CBL because it governs the operating and financial policies of CBL.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group and
the Bank.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Bank and
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Principles of consolidation of the subsidiary (Continued)

the subsidiaries are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, and consolidated statement of financial position respectively.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interest to reflect their relative
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Bank.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group and the Bank
operate (the functional currency). The functional currency is the United States dollars (US$) because
of the significant influence of the US$ on its operations. The consolidated and separate financial
statements are presented in US$ which is the Group’s and the Bank’s functional and presentation
currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in currencies other than US$ are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the consolidated and
separate statement of profit or loss, within interest expense. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Presentation in Khmer Riel

In compliance with the Law on Accounting and Auditing, the consolidated and separate financial
statements shall be expressed in Khmer Riel (KHR). The consolidated and separate statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the consolidated and separate statement of cash flows
are translated into KHR using the average exchange rates for the year. Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rates as at the reporting dates,
and shareholders’ capital and reserves are translated at the rate at the date of transaction. Resulting
exchange differences of other reserves are recognised in the other comprehensive income.

The Group and the Bank have used the official rates of exchange published by the National Bank of
Cambodia, and as at the reporting date, the average rate was US$ 1 to KHR4,087 (2021: KHR4,068)
and the closing rate was US$ 1 to KHR4,117 (2021: KHR4,074).

(iv) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate as at the reporting date of that statement of financial position

. income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

J all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated and separate statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, the non-restricted deposits and placements with the central
bank and with other banks with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

74



75

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial instruments

2.6.1 Financial assets

i) Classification

The Group and the Bank classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured at amortised cost, which include cash on hand, deposits and
placements with the central bank, deposits and placements with other banks, loans and

advances, investment securities at amortised cost and other financial assets; or

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit
or loss).

For financial assets at amortised cost, the classification depends on the Group’s and the Bank’s model
for managing financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets cash flows.

o The asset is held within a business model with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows, and
o The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

The Group and the Bank reclassify financial assets when and only when their business model for
managing those assets changes.

For financial assets measured at fair value, gains or losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investment in equity instruments that are held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group and the Bank has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for

the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

ii) Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Group and the Bank become a party to the contractual
provision of the instruments. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade date, being the date on which the Group and the Bank commit to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group and the Bank have transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership. A gain or loss on derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost is recognised in profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognised.

iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group and the Bank measure a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial instruments (continued)

2.6.1 Financial assets (continued)

iii) Measurement (continued)

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected
credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost, which results
in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group'’s and the Bank’s business model
for managing the assets and the cash flow characteristics of the assets. Based on these factors, the

Group and the Bank classify its debt instruments as financial assets measured at amortised cost.
Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI), and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance
recognised. Interest income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the
effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments:

The Group and the Bank subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive payments is established. Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in profit or loss as applicable.

iv) Impairment

The Group and the Bank assess on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and with the exposure arising from credit
commitments. The Group and the Bank recognise a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting
date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

. An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

° The time value of money; and

. Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or

effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial instruments (continued)

2.6.1 Financial assets (continued)

iv) Impairment (continued)

The Group and the Bank apply a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses for the
following categories:

o debt instruments measured at amortised cost; and
o credit commitments

The three-stage approach is based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-month ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and that are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the

probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is

recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For exposures that have become credit
impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective

interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

ECL are recognised as credit impairment losses in profit or loss. Please refer to (Note 39.1 c) for credit

risk in financial risk management for detailed measurement on ECL.

2.6.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group and the Bank become a party to the contractual
provision of the instruments. Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities of
the Group and the Bank include deposits from banks and other financial institutions, deposits from
customers, borrowings, subordinated debts, and other financial liabilities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial instruments (continued)

2.6.2 Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs for all financial liabilities
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have
been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.

2.6.3 Credit commitments

Credit commitments provided by the Group and the Bank are measured as the amount of the loss
allowance. The Group and the Bank have not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-
market interest rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial
instrument.

For credit commitments, the expected credit losses are recognised as provisions (presented with other
liabilities). However, for contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and that the
Group and the Bank cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment
component from those on the loan component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment
are recognised together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected
credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised
as a provision.

2.7 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated and separate
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.8 Property and equipment

Land and buildings are recognised at fair value based on periodic, but at least every five years,
valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. A revaluation
surplus is credited to other reserves in shareholders’ equity. Buildings are being depreciated over the
remaining useful lives after revaluation.

All other property and equipment is recognised at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Property and equipment (continued)

Revaluation surplus of land and buildings, net of deferred taxes: increases in the carrying amounts
arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease
previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in other comprehensive income to
the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to profit
or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of
the asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax, is
reclassified from the property and equipment revaluation surplus to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of assets less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives.

Freehold lands are not depreciated. Construction in progress represents property and equipment
under construction and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction, property and equipment,
and other direct costs. Construction in-progress is not depreciated until such time when the relevant
assets are completed and ready for operational use.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 30 to 50 years

Leasehold improvement Lower of 20 years or lease term
Furniture and fixtures 5 Years

Office equipment 5to 10 Years

Computers and IT equipment 3 to 6 Years

Vehicles 5 to 8 Years

Leasehold improvements are presented together with buildings in the movement of property and
equipment. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and
adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since the last
reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable value immediately if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable value.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are included in profit or loss.

2.9 Investment properties
Land and buildings heldg to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both is classified as investment
property. Investment property also includes property that is being constructed or developed for future

use as investment property.

Owned investment property (building) is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

Subsequently, the investment property is carried at fair value. Investment property under construction is
measured at fair value if the fair value is considered to be reliably determinable. Investment properties
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Investment properties (continued)

under construction for which the fair value cannot be determined reliably, but for which the Bank
expects the fair value of the property will be reliably determinable when construction is completed, are
measured at cost less impairment until the fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is
completed — whichever is earlier.

2.10 Intangible assets

Computer software is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over estimated
useful life of five years. Construction in-progress is not depreciated until such time when the relevant
assets are completed and ready for operational use. Costs associated with maintenance of computer
software are recognised as expenses when incurred.

2.11 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to
fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs
to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain
or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the
date of derecognition. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified
as held for sale. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented in the other assets in the
statement of financial position.

2.12 Investment in subsidiary

In the Bank's separate financial statements, investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of investments are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The amounts due from subsidiaries of which the Bank does not expect repayment in foreseeable
future are considered as part of the Bank’s investments in subsidiaries.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

Any impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises. Reversal of impairment
losses is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no
impairment loss been recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
the employees of the Group and the Bank.

ii) Pension fund scheme

The Group and the Bank pays monthly contributions for the compulsory pension scheme to National
Social Security Fund (NSSF), a publicly administered social security scheme for pension in Cambodia.
The Group and the Bank has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due.

iii) Other employment benefits - Employment seniority payment

In June 2018, the Cambodian government amended the Labour Law introducing the seniority pay
scheme. Subsequently in 21 September 2018, Prakas No. 443 K.B/Br.K.Kh.L, was issued providing
guidelines on the implementation of the law. In accordance with the law/prakas, each entity is required
to pay each employee with unspecified duration employment contract the following seniority scheme:

(a) Annual service - effective January 2019, 15 days of their average monthly salary and
benefits each year payable every six month on 30 June and 31 December (7.5 days
each payment).

(b) Past years of seniority service - employees are entitled to 15 days of their salary per year
of service since the commencement of employment up to 31 December 2018 and still
continue working with the Group and the Bank. The past seniority payment depends on
each staff past services and shall not exceed six months of average gross salaries.

On 22 March 2019, the Ministry of Labour and Vocational Training issued a guideline
number 042/19 K.B/S.N.N.Kh.L, to delay the payment of the past years of seniority
service which will be payable three days each in June and in December starting
December 2021.

The annual service pay is considered as short-term employee benefits. These are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group and the Bank.

The past years of seniority service is paid out of gratitude fund. Upon resignation, employees are not

entitled to the remaining unpaid past years of seniority service but the remaining unpaid gratitude
fund.

iv) Gratitude fund

The Bank provides its employees with benefits under gratitude fund. The benefit is payable upon their
retirement, death, disablement or upon voluntary termination. The amount of the lump sum benefit is
dependent on the employees’ monthly salary and years of services on 31 March 2022 if any employees
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Employee benefits (continued)

iv) Gratitude fund (continued)

have met eligible criteria of seniority from two years and above up to the 31 March 2022.

An employee who has worked for the Bank for two to five years is entitled upon
resignation to a lump sum payment representing 50% of the employee’s monthly basic
salary by 31 March 2022 multiplied by the number of full years’ service rendered by 31
March 2022.

An employee who has worked for the Bank for more than five years to ten years is
entitled upon resignation to a lump sum payment representing 75% of the employee’s
monthly basic salary by 31 March 2022 multiplied by the number of full years’ service
rendered by 31 March 2022.

An employee who has worked for the Bank for more than ten years is entitled upon
resignation to a lump sum payment representing 100% of the employee’s monthly basic
salary by 31 March 2022 multiplied by the number of full years’ service rendered by 31
March 2022.

Previous accounting policy on gratitude fund

Effective from commencement of the fund until 1 July 2021:

At the age of retirement, the retired employee will be given compensation based on the
number of full years’ service rendered multiplied by the final month’s salary.

An employee who has worked for the Bank for two years or more is entitled upon
resignation to a lump sum payment representing the employee’s final month’s salary
multiplied by the number of full years’ service rendered. The payment of employment
benefits is subject to the discretion of the Bank’s management.

Effective from 1 July 2021, the Bank terminated the retirement benefits and revised the benefits as
follow:

An employee who has worked for the Bank for two to five years is entitled upon
resignation to a lump sum payment representing 50% of the employee’s final month’s
salary multiplied by the number of full years’ service rendered.

An employee who has worked for the Bank for more than five years to ten years is
entitled upon resignation to a lump sum payment representing 75% of the employee’s
final month’s salary multiplied by the number of full years’ service rendered.

An employee who has worked for the Bank for more than ten years is entitled upon
resignation to a lump sum payment representing 100% of the employee’s final month’s
salary multiplied by the number of full years’ service rendered.

The gratitude fund is a defined benefit obligation. It is the present value of the defined benefit
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Employee benefits (continued)

iv) Gratitude fund (continued)

obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets if any. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation. Where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government
bonds are used.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets if any. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the statement of
financial position.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

2.15 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense from financial instruments at amortised cost are recognised within interest
income and interest expense respectively in the consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
throughout the expected life of the financial instruments or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, The Group and the Bank take into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument and
includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses.

Interest income is calculated by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for:

. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (POCI), for which the original
credit-adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the financial assets.

. Financial assets that are not POCI but have subsequently become credit-impaired (or
‘stage 3'), for which interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to their amortised cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss provision).

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.16 Fee and commission income

Feesand commissions are recognised asincome when all conditions precedent are fulfilled (performance
obligations are satisfied and control is transferred over time or point in time).

Commitment fees for loans, advances and financing that are likely to be drawn down are deferred
(together with related direct costs) and income which forms an integral part of the effective interest rate
of a financial instrument is recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the financial
instrument.

2.17 Leases
The Bank as a lessor

Rental income from investment properties and multi-purpose tower that are leased to third parties
under operating lease are recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group and the Bank as a lessee

As inception of contract, the Group and the Bank assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group and the Bank allocate the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the lease assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.

i) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments from fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group and the Bank, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Leases (continued)

i) Lease liabilities (continued)

borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group and the Bank use its recent borrowing rate as
a starting point, making specific adjustments to the lease such as term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and interest expense. The interest expense is charge
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

ii) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received

o any initial direct costs, and

J restoration cots if any

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group and the Bank are reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Subsequently the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

iii) Recognition exemptions

Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets and short-term leases are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Bank have a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

When there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as an interest expense.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income, based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period where the Group and the Bank operate and generate
taxable income.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated and
separate financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.20 Share capital

Share capital is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new share
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.21 Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the Bank, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Reserves

a) General reserves

General reserves are set up for any overall financial risk of the Group and the Bank. The Board of
Directors exercises its discretion for the use and maintenance of the general reserves by transferring
from retained earnings.

b) Regulatory reserves

Banks and financial institutions are required to compute regulatory provisions, according to Prakas No.
B7-017-344 dated 1 December 2017, Circular No. B7-018-001 dated 16 February 2018 on credit risk
classification and provisions on impairment, and Circular No. B7-021-2314 dated 28 December 2021
(implemented from 1 January 2022) on the classification and provisioning requirements for restruc-
tured loans. If the accumulated regulatory provision is higher than the accumulated impairment based
on CIFRS 9, the “topping up’ will be recorded as regulatory reserves presented under equity. The re-
serve is subsequently reversed (up to zero) should the accumulated regulatory provision equal or be
lower than accumulated impairment based on CIFRS 9. The regulatory reserve is set aside as a buffer,
is non-distributable, is not allowed to be included in the net worth calculation.

2.23 Rounding of amounts

All Khmer Riel amounts disclosed in the consolidated and separate financial statements and notes
have been rounded off to the nearest thousand currency units unless otherwise stated.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS,
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The Group and the Bank make estimates, assumptions and judgements
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates, assumptions and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

i) Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised
cost is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about the future
economic conditions and credit behaviour. Explanation of the inputs assumptions and estimation
techniques used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note 39.1 (c).

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring ECL, such as:
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS,
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

) Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance (continued)

J determining criteria for identifying loans to customers that have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk (SICR)

J grouping financial assets sharing similar credit risk characteristics for the purposes of
measuring ECL

. choosing appropriate models and assumptions to measure ECL

. applying assumptions and analysis on expected future cash flows and forward-looking

information

ii) Leaseterm

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated).

iii) Determination of whether a property is owner occupied or investment property

The Bank has a tower used for multi-purposes; certain floors are for bank’s operation, and others are for
leases. Because different parts of the property cannot be sold separately, and certain floors are leased
out when the bank’s operation does not fully utilise the remaining floors. Management has therefore
determined that the tower may be treated in its entirety as a property (not an investment property).

iv) Gratitude fund

The Bank provides its employee with gratitude fund based on the policy in Note 2.13 and recognised
as provision for employee benefits in the statement of financial position. The past years of seniority
service is paid out of this fund. The gratitude fund is a defined benefit obligation, while the Bank has
not set up any plan asset for this fund. The provision is calculated annually as the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period using the project unit credit method.
In the computation, the Bank uses financial and demographic assumptions such as discount rate,
withdrawal rates, mortality rate, disability rates, and retirement age, which are described in Note 20.

Due to the change in Gratitude Fund policy in Note 2.13, the Bank recognised a gain of US$ 6,156,461
as past service costs in the profit or loss and an actuarial loss in the other comprehensive income of
US$164,489.

v) Fair value of the revalued properties

The Bank applies revaluation approach to its freehold land and buildings and obtained independent
valuations at least every five years.

At the end of the reporting date, the management update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, considering the most recent independent valuations. The management determine property’s
value at the amount reported within independent valuations.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS,
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

v) Fair value of the revalued properties (continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such
information is not available the independent valuer considers current prices in an active market for
properties of a different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted to
reflect those difference.

The key inputs under this market approach are the price per square metre from current selling prices
of comparable lots of land in the area (location and size) adjusted for negotiation and differences
between the subject property and the comparable. For buildings where there is no comparability,
replacement costs approach is used to estimate the construction cost to build the new buildings under
similar specification of the subjects under valuations.

As a result of the revaluation, the Bank recognised a revaluation loss for certain buildings (previously no
revaluation gain) of US$1,942,112 in profit or loss and a revaluation gain of US$87,103,651, net of tax
US$75,475,664, as revaluation surplus in equity, as in Note 10. vi) Change in useful lives of buildings.

vi) Change in useful lives of buildings

The Bank assesses useful lives of buildings based on physical conditions and change their useful lives
accordingly from 20 years to a range from 30 to 50 years on a building by building basis. The change in
useful lives of buildings is a change in accounting estimate and shall reflect prospectively in the profit
or loss.

The resulting impact from the change in useful lives of buildings are disclosed in Note 10.
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4. CASH ON HAND

The Group The Bank

2022 2021 2022

2021

US$ Million KHR US$ Million KHR US$ Million KHR

US$ Million KHR

Current

US Dollars 244,667,423 1,007,296 357,222,100 1,455,323 243,900,075 1,004,137 356,609,106 1,452,825
Khmer Riel 68,745,408 283,025 73,151,185 298,018 68,745,408 283,025 73,151,185 298,018
Others 16,842,838 69,342 14,805,271 60,316 16,566,378 68,203 14,274,967 58,157

330,255,669 1,359,663 445,178,556 1,813,657 329,211,861 1,355,365 444,035,258 1,809,000

5. DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS WITH OTHER BANKS

The Group The Bank

2022 2021 2022

2021

US$ Million KHR US$ Million KHR Us$ Million

KHR

Us$  Million
KHR

Gross balances of
deposits and
638,388,229 2,628,245 411,049,673 1,674,616 642,700,415 2,645,997

placements

404,168,822 1,646,584

Less: Impairment
loss allowance

(1,303,784) (5,368)  (2,033,661) (8,285) (1,204,096) (4,957)

(1,667,030) (6,792)

Net balances of
deposits and
placements

637,084,445 2,622,877 409,016,012 1,666,331 641,496,319 2,641,040

402,501,792 1,639,792
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6. DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS WITH THE CENTRAL

BANK

The Group The Bank

2022 2021 2022 2021
us$ Million us$ Million US$ Million KHR US$ Million KHR
KHR KHR
Current accounts 361,216,369 1,487,128 623,444,715 2,539,914 344,310,805 1,417,528 621,724,727 2,532,907
Negotiable
certificate of 666,630,592 2,744,518 760,398,756 3,097,865 666,630,592 2,744,518 760,398,756 3,097,864
deposit (NCD)
1,027,846,961 4,231,646 1,383,843,471 5,637,779 1,010,941,397 4,162,046 1,382,123,483 5,630,771

Current 1,027,846,961 4,231,646 1,383,843,471 5,637,779 1,010,941,397 4,162,046 1,382,123,483 5,630,771

Non-current - -

1,027,846,961 4,231,646 1,383,843,471 5,637,779

1,010,941,397

4,162,046 1,382,123,483 5,630,771

The Bank has pledged negotiable certificate of deposits (NCD) amounting to US$19,628,953 (2021:
US$10,850,957) with the central bank as collateral for settlement clearing facility. Another NCD
amounting to US$26,290,000 (2021: US$74,410,000) with the central bank is pledged as collateral for
borrowing on Liquidity Providing Collateralised Operation (LPCO) (Note 19). As at 31 December 2022,

the Bank had yet utilised the overdraft on settlement clearing facility.

Annual interest rates:

The Group The Bank

us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
Deposits and placements with the Central Bank
Current accounts Nil Nil Nil Nil
Settlement accounts Nil Nil Nil Nil

Negotiable certificate of deposit

0.02% - 3.62%

0.02% - 1.60%

0.02% - 3.62%

0.02% - 1.60%

CANADIA BANK
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

7.

The Bank

The Group

2021

2022

Us$

2021

2022
us$

Million KHR

Uss$

Million KHR

Million KHR

Uss$

Million KHR

2,154,662
1,644,206
11,956,701
15,755,569

528,881,228
403,585,269
2,934,880,081

2,284,846
1,525,071

12,235,657
16,045,574 3,867,346,578

554,978,297
370,432,481
2,971,983,822
3,897,394,600

2,284,963 528,925,101 2,154,841

1,525,339
12,299,781

555,006,866
370,497,672
2,987,559,255
3,913,063,793

Overdrafts

1,644,375
12,017,817
15,817,033

403,626,680
2,949,881,350

Short term loans

Long term loans

16,110,083 3,882,433,131

4,085,909
19,841,478

1,002,922,877

1,028,582,656 4,234,674

4,925,977,256

4,098,234
19,915,267

4,244,395  1,005,948,572
4,888,381,703

20,354,478

1,030,943,552
4,944,007,345

Consumer loans

20,280,248 4,870,269,455

Loans and advances to customers - gross

(444,698) (130,879,744) (533,204)

(108,015,136)

(544,036)

(133,538,568)

(454,374)

(110,365,349)

Less: Impairment loss allowance

19,308,274

19,835,550 4,739,389,711

4,817,962,120

19,371,231

19,900,104 4,754,843,135

4,833,641,996

Loans and advances to customers - net
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(3,743)
205,024

(209,196)
49,799,278

(3,975)
217,725

(965,523)
52,884,444

Less: impairment loss allowance

4,024
209,048

977,597
50,776,875

4,025
221,750

977,598
53,862,042

Government bonds at amortised cost

Listed equity securities at fair value through

9,012

2,212,047
2,212,047

10,357

232,107

2,515,593
56,377,635

other comprehensive income (ii)

50,776,875 209,048

9,012

Unlisted corporate bonds at amortised cost are investment bonds in a related company subscribed on 31 December 2022 with a term of three

years and annual coupon rate of 5.5%.

(i)
(ii)

The movements of equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) were as follows:

The Bank

The Group

2021

2022

2021

2022
us$

Million KHR

Us$

Million KHR

Us$

Million KHR

Us$

Million KHR

Listed equity securities at fair value

through other comprehensive income

At 1 January
Additions

10,582

2,616,076

9,012

2,212,047

4,723

1,155,629

(822)
(403,207)

(€]

(3,452)

(7,547)

(844,536)

Disposals

(1,640)

Change in fair value to OCI

73
9,012

105
10,357

Currency translation difference

2,212,047

2,515,593

At 31 December

The equity securities are not held for trading so the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for equity

securities at FVOCI.

9. STATUTORY DEPOSITS WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

2022 2021 2022 2021

US$ Million KHR US$ Million KHR US$ Million KHR US$  Million

KHR

Current

Reserve
requirements

388,277,036 1,598,537 384,398,865 1,566,041 388,145,824 1,597,997 384,352,921 1,565,853

Non-current

Capital

t
depostts. 66,184,157 272,480 58,994,217 240,342  65212,114 268,478 58,011,667 236,340

454,461,193 1,871,017 443,393,082 1,806,383 453,357,938 1,866,475 442,364,588 1,802,193

(i) Reserve requirements
Canadia Bank Plc.

The reserve requirement represents the minimum reserve which is calculated at 7% (2021: 7% for KHR
and other currencies) of customers’ deposits and borrowings in Khmer Riel (KHR) and other currencies
of the Bank. The reserve requirement on customers’ deposits and borrowings bear no interest.

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (CBL)

Under regulations of the Bank of the Lao P.D.R (BolL), CBL is required to maintain certain cash reserves
with the BOL in the form of compulsory deposits, which are computed at 5.00% for LAK and 5.00% for
foreign currencies, on a fortnight basis, of customer deposits having original maturities of less than 12
months (2021: 3.00% and 5.00%).

(i) Capital guarantee deposits
Canadia Bank Plc.

Under the NBC Prakas No. B7-01-136, dated 15 October 2001, banks are required to maintain a capital
guarantee deposit of 10% of share capital. This deposit is refundable should the Bank voluntarily cease
its operations in Cambodia and it is not available for use in the Bank’s day-to-day operations.

Cana Securities Ltd. (CNS)

In compliance with the SERC's Prakas No. 001/18 on the licencing of securities firms and securities
representatives, CNS is required to place a statutory deposit into SERC's bank account maintained
with the National Bank of Cambodia amounting to KHR4,000,000,000 (equivalent to US$971,581)
(2021: KHR4,000,000,000, equivalent to US$981,836) for operating as a securities underwriter in
Cambodia. The deposit (non-interest bearing), which is not available for use in the Company’s day-to-
day operations, is refundable should the Company voluntarily cease its operations in Cambodia.

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (CBL)

According to Decree No. 02/PR of BOL, commercial banks are required to maintain a minimum
balance of special deposit at BOL which is equivalent to 25% of their paid-up capital to secure for their
operational continuance. CBL was then approved by the BOL to withdraw from this deposit account to
supplement its working capital.

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

100



SEL'6L9 oL8’sL S20've GEL'S L9’y z08 zve'zee 080°90% 3usjeanba YHy| uolIA Ul
LOV'V0L'S9L 886'€SE’E 915'G€8'S 620'9L6'L zgce’LelL’L 898'v61 ¥29'186'€S 000'S£9'86 junowe o00q 12N
(£2¥'980"6V) (L6 VYY) (6€€'710'8) (96%'9%1'€) (¥92'059'L) - (L€6'0€2°LE) - uoneaidap parenwnoy
ve8'061vLZ G8E'86L'L GGeg'6v8'cl  Gz6'ceL's V9’111 898'v61 G6G'zlZ'e8 000'5€9'86 150D
220¢ 19quiadaq LE 1e sy
LOY'VOL'S9L 886'€S€E’E 91S'S€8’'S 620'9L6'L ese’LelL’L 898'v61 v29'L86'cS 000°S£9'86 junouwe o0q 33u Buiso[d
(206'295'9) (Lie'ees) (819'80%'2) (¥S1'09¢€) (599'/8¢) - (¥SS'2£9'2) - obueyd uonepaideg
(000'0£0'9) - - - - - - (000'0£0'9) Jajsuel|
vSL'6 - viv'y LES'T €08'¢ - - - uonedaidap pPaleNWINIDE - SPO-BLAN
(¥SL'6) - ¥Ly'y) (L€S'2) (€082 - - - 150D - SJO-81AN
¥89'£91 598'ZS1 0L0'1 69L'0L 086'C - - - uonepaidep paje|nuwinooe - sjesodsiq
(0£6'252) (005's€2) (0£0'1L) (09s'2l) (0v8'¢) - - - 1500 - sjesodsi(
, , , , , , uoneipaldep
(€1€'S6) 95" VY1 88L'€l (0z8'9L1) (¢01'82) - (S12'8v) - oorenwnoE - vonepsuen uoneiado uBlIoy
(£09'8Y) (€G6'961) 960762 (909'v9) (£25'L2) - (£19'€9) - 1500 - uone|sues} uonesedo ubaiog
8ES'L9L'S8 - - - - v9L- 9/8'LSE'ET 92y'v08'L9 10U - 53550|/5UIe6 Uopen|enay
LEL'0SL'S 611'S9€ L66'6LL'Y 08¢€'£9¢€ G20'09¢ 2€9's61 0€5'28¢2 - suoppY
0vZ'v10'£8 CLLLS8'E  6ST9SL'E 020'TLET LLS'LLZ L - ¥OL'9LLEE /5'098'zy aunoule Yoo0q 3au Bujuedo
2202 4oqwieda( L g popuse Jeak ay) Jo4
ove'v10'L8 TLL'[S8'E 6S2'9S.L'E ozo'zie'e LLs'Lie'L - voL'9LL'EE L5'098'Cy junowe 3o00q 1aN
(059'509°2ZY) (£88°£00'Y)  (€66'129'9) (828'ze'e) (0ogz'ove’L) - (299'605'82) - uonepaidap pale|nunddy
068'619'6C1L 659'G98'/ FATA RIS 8¥8'vEY’S L6L'LSY'C - 99/'G29'L9 ¥/4G5'098'¢y 150D
L20¢ 4equsdeQ L€ 1e sY
jUaLINd-UOpN
dnoug ay)

$sn $sn $sn $snN $snN $sn $sSn $SnN

saIyaA

juswdinba
1l pue

193ndwo)

juswdinbs
9IHO

sa.naxiy
pue
ainjluang

(AINNILNOD) LNIINHINDI ANV AL¥3dOdd ‘0L

ssaibo.ud
ul
uoIIdNIISUO?D)

juawanoiduwi

ployases)

pue sbuip|ing

pue|
ployaai

96V'VSE 91LL'SL €0€'SL cLo's 9€6'Y - SL6'vEL vi9'vLL juajeainba yH| uolIA U]
ove'v10'L8 TLL'LS8'E 6S2'9S/L'E ozo'zie'e LLs'Lie’L - voL'9LL'EE 450982y iunowe >00q 1SN
(059'509°2Y) (£88'£00'7)  (€66'%729'9) (828'ze'e) (08z'0vz’L) - (299'605'82) - uoneipaidsp paie|nwinddy
068'619'621L 659'598'L 252'18¢e'6 8¥8'vEY'S L64'LSY'C - 992'S29'L9 v/5'098'¢y 180D
L20¢ 19quiedeq LE 1e sv
ove'v10'L8 CLL'LS8'E 6S82'9S.'E ozo'zie'e LLs'Lie’L - VOL'9LL'EE .5'098'CY 1unowe >00q 3au Buiso|)
(£5€'2609) (€68'0€/) (625'vL9'L)  (898'8€¢€) (907'96€) - (199156'2) - abieyd uonepaideq
(9L1'22) - - - - (911'22) - s}esse 1910 0} Jajsuel|
9/5'1¥91 - - - - - 9/5'791L - uoiedaidep PaleINWINIDE - SHO-SMIAN
(P€€'£92) - - - - - (PeE'£92) - 1500 - SJO-SIA
L9L'LSL 6v9'8L1 oLv'e 965'82 zLL - - - uoneraidsp parejnwinooe - sjesodsig
(LL0'61€) (008282) oLv'e) (8e¥’L€) (€9¢"1) - - - 1500 - sjesodsiq
uoneipaidep

v6v'64G 608’871 €8€'961 90'vEL G88'L9 - €5€'8¢ - paje[nwnoe - uone|sues) uonelsdo ubisio
(82G'5G9) (LLY'S2) (62L'22Y) (500'82) (£5€'21) (lz1'9¢) (S06'0€) - 150 - uonesue.} uoneledo ubieloy
LVT'986"L 0£5'80S L89°LSL'C €68'/S€ 070’892 - L60'8/S"L 000'22S' suonippy
205'88¢€'S8 888'0CL'y LY'S06'C 8//'680'C 009°062"L LET'8S 8/6'78G'v¢E ¥/5'8€€'0Y 1unowe >ooq 1au Buluedo
1202 4eqwadaq g papua Jeak ayy Jo4
205'88¢€'S8 888'0CL'y LYY'S06'C 8/4L'680'C 009°062°L LET'8S 8L6'78S'VE vLS'8€E’OY junowe 3004 13N
(0€1'60%"LE) (esv'vvs'e)  (LSC'0SL'Y)  (029'9v0'E) (1£8'906) - (0£6'09£'G2) - uonerdaidep paienwinooy
2€9'161'CCL 0ve'599'L ¥0£'GS0"L 86£'9€L’S LY L61'C LET'8S 806'S€'09 ¥/G'8€€'0V 150D
1202 >‘_N3r_mﬂ | e sy
jua.LINd-UoN
dnoug ay)

$sn $sn $sn $snN $snN $sn $sn $snN

saIyaA

juawdinba
1l pue

193ndwo)

juawdinba
VIHPO

saJn)xiy
pue
ainjuang

ssaib6o0.d
ul
uoI3dNIISU0)

juawanoiduwi

ployeses)

pue sbuipjing

INJINdINO3 ANV ALY3IdO0dd ‘0L

pue|
ployaau

102

101

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

CANADIA BANK



"000'0£0°9$SN 1e (eN|eA Jiey) Junowe panjesal ay) e seiadoid Juswisaaul 01 Juswdinbs pue Ausdoid woly paiisjsues) usyy si pue| pjoysai) ay] Aued
pale|aJ B 0} 8ses| IO} Jueg Sy} JO pue| pjoysai) B U0 Bulp|ing e Bunoniisuod sem sjueg sy} Jeak syy Buunq :ssiadoid juswiseaul 0} pue| Jo Jaysued|

104

€€0'089 96l°El v92've 165’8 229’y c08 8LV¥'zee 080’907 juajeainba yH| uolIAl U]
908'9L1'S9L £10'S0Z’E Sv9'c68'S LEL'980°C 669'C2L'L 898161 9¥8'8€0'vS 000'S£9'86 iunowe >00q 18N
(886'719'87) (28e's99'v)  (0v0'0€L'l)  (2€4'9GS'E) (Lv¥'£8S'1) - (£8€'S20'L€) - uoneroaidep psienwinooy
v6L'16L'€1LC 66€'048'L G89'cz9'cl €9Y'er9’S ovL'0LL'C 89861 €E€T'VL1'G8 000'GE9'86 150D
¢c0¢ 1equiedeq Lg e sy
908'9L1'S9L £10's0Z’E Sv9'c68'S LEL'980°C 669'c2L'L 898161 9¥8'8€0'vS 000'S£9'86 junowe 5004 3au buiso|)
(5€8'125'9) (69€'924) (122'26€'2) (§59'05€) (916'v8€) - (8€9'£99°2) - abieyp uonepaideq
(000°0€0°9) - - - - - - (000°0£0'9) semadoid Jusunsenu; oy Jejsuel]
r19'991 G98'zS1 - 69,01 086'C - - - uonepaidap parejnuwndoe - siesodsig
(006'152) (005'5€2) - (09s'zL) (ov8'e) - - - 1500 - sjesods|q
8€G'191'S8 - - - - ¥94) 9/8'L5€'€C 9C¥'v08’L9 18U - s8s50|/sulef uonen|eAsy
9LE'SYL'S 611'59¢€ G99'S/L'Y S¥S'99¢ G9/'6G€ 2€9'G61 0€5'28¢ - suonppy
€/0'206'98 Zv8'8v9’e LO0Z'0LL'Y 2€9'2/0'C ovL'sylL’L - 8/0'990'¢E ¥£45'098'¢y 1unowe yooq 1au Buiuado
2202 12qwiadaq Lg papus Jeak ayy Jo4
€L0°'L06'98 Zv8'sy9’s L0Z'0LL'Y 2€9'2L0'C ovL'svL’L - 8L0'990°cE ¥45'098'CY iunowe >00dq 1SN
(£91'652'2Y) (8/8'L60'Y)  (€18°LEE'S) (9r8'9L2'e) (18¥'s0z’L) - (6¥7L'L0V'82) - uonepaidep paje|nunddy
0v8'991'621 ozL'ovL'L  0Z0'8vy'6 8/¥'682'S L2Z'vSEC - LT8'ELY'L9 ¥.5'098'CYy 150D
120z Joquiadaq L e sy
3US4IND-UON|
sueg ayy

$sn $sn $sn $sn $sn $sn $sn $sn

sapIYaA

juawdinba
1l pue

19indwo)

juawdinba
P3O

saJn)xiy
pue
aJnjuang

(AINNILNOD) LNIINHINDI ANV ALYIdO¥d 0L

ssaiboid
ul
uoIIdNIISUOD)

juswanoiduwi
ployeses|
pue sBuip|ing

pue|
ployea.4

6S0'VS€E S98'vL SvL'91 vy’ 089t - LLL'YEL vi9'vLL jusjeainba yH| uolIA U]
€L0'£06'98 zv8'sy9’e L02'0LL'Y zg9'eLo’e ovL'svL’lL - 8£0'990'€€ v£5'098'¢Y junowe >00q 15N
(£91'652'2Y) (8/8'L60'7)  (€18/€€'9) (9v8'912'¢) (18¥'s0Z'L) - (6¥72'10V'82) - uonerdaidep palenwnody
0v8'991'621L 0zL'ovL'L 0208’6 8/¥'682'S LZZ'vSe' - LT8'ELV'LY ¥/5'098'¢y 150D
LZ0¢ 19qusde(q L¢ e sy
€L0'£06'98 zv8'sv9’e L0Z'0LL'Y zg9'eLo’e ovL'svL’L - 8£0'990'€€ v£5'098'¢Y junowe 5004 3au Buiso|)
(0£8'900'9) (615'922) (Pr2'€€9'1) (962'92¢€) (969'68¢€) - (SL1'0£6'2) - ab1eyo uonenaideQ
91122 - - - - 91122 - - s}esse JaYlo O} Jojsuel|
9/5'¥91 - - - - - 9/5'791L - uoiedaidep PaleINWINIDE - SHO-SMIAN
(re€'£92) - - - - - (Pe€'£92) - 1500 - SJO-SIA
[S€'8YL 6v9'8L L - 965'8¢ ZLL'L - - - uonepaidap pajejnundoe - sjesodsig
(L09'sLg) (008'282) - I (€9¢'1) - - - 1500 - sjesodsi(
€es’'Les', 0€£5'80S 12G'G69'C ¥02'0S€ 181292 - 160'8/5'L 0002eS’e suonippy
82S'782'98 286'0€0'Y 0EY'810’'e 990'2S0'C 90S’L/T'L oLL'ze ¥58'0¢G'vE v/5'8¢€'0Y unowe ooq jau Buuedo
1202 1oqwadeq LE papus Jeak ayy o4
825'v82’'s8 286'0€0'Y 0EV'8Y0’E 9902502 90S°'LLZ'L gLL'ee ¥58'02S'vE vLS'8EE oY junowe >00q 13N
(0£8'G95'9¢) (800'¥8¥'€)  (690'70L'€) (9¥9'816'2) (£68'918) - (oLz'zv9'se) - uonepaidap paje|nunddy
85£'0S8'LZlL 066'71GL 66%'251'9 ZLL'0L6"y €07'880'¢C oLL'ze ¥90'€91'09 v/5'8€€'0Y 150D
120¢ >L63:m—a | e sy
JUaLINd-UON]
Jueg 8y

$sn $sn $sn $sn $sn $sn $sn $sn

juswdinba saJnyxiy ssaiboud juswanoidwi
|erol S3DIYaA 1] pue juswdinba pue ui ployoses| puej
J93ndwo) 91O ainjjuang uoIIdNIISUO?D) pue sBuipjing [ pjoyea.4

(A3INNILNOD) LNIINHINDI ANV AL¥3dOdd ‘0L

103

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

CANADIA BANK



105

10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Land and buildings revaluation: In 2022, the Bank engaged an independent valuer to revalue its land
and buildings which result in both gains or losses to each net book value of land and buildings under
property and equipment. The gains and losses are the differences between the net book value on

the revalued date and revalued amount.

Freehold land Buildings

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Freehold land Construction in Total
progress

Uss Uss$ Us$
The Group and the Bank
Non-current
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Opening amount - - _
Additions - 1,645,132 1,645,132
Transfer 6,030,000 - 6,030,000
Closing amount 6,030,000 1,645,132 7,675,132
In Million KHR equivalent 24,826 6,773 31,599

Us$ Million KHR us$ Million KHR
Net book value as at revalued date of 31 August 2022 42,860,574 174,614 31,364,360 127,778
Revaluation gains to OCI 63,692,529 260,311 23,411,122 95,681
Revaluation losses to profit or loss (1,888,103) (7,717) (53,246) (218)
Currency translation difference - 3,698 - 2,050
Fair value/revalued amount of revalued assets 104,665,000 430,906 54,722,236 225,291

Carrying amounts that would have been recognised if land and buildings were stated at cost:

Freehold land Buildings

uss$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
At cost Revalued At cost Revalued
At 31 December 2022
Cost/Revalued amount 30,457,912 104,665,000 55,239,957 85,114,233
Accumulated depreciation - - (28,378,463)  (31,075,387)
Net book amount 30,457,912 104,665,000 26,861,494 54,038,846
At 31 December 2021
Cost/Revalued amount 30,457,912 42,860,574 54,957,427 61,473,827
Accumulated depreciation - - (25,748,182) (28,407,749)
Net book amount 30,457,912 42,860,574 29,209,245 33,066,078

Change in useful lives of buildings: Upon revaluation, the Bank reassessed useful lives of buildings as
described in Note 3. The depreciation charge for buildings before change in useful lives would have
been US$2,982,333 as compared to the current charge in profit or loss of US$2,667,638.

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

The Bank has investment properties which are land and building under construction. The fair value of
the land is the revalued amount transferred from property and equipment. The fair value of investment
properties under construction (construction in progress) are not reliably estimated because they are
still in the construction stage.

12. LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group and the Bank are lessees.

The Group and the Bank lease buildings for its operations. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of 2 to 50 years. There is no renewal for these leases.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated and separate statement of financial position

The Group The Bank

2022 2021 2022 2021
us$ Million us$ Million us$ Million US$ Million
KHR KHR KHR KHR
Right-of-use assets
(Non-current)
Buildings 21,641,776 89,099 22,405,725 91,281 21,641,776 89,099 22,405,725 91,281
Additions to the
right-of-use assets 1,814,213 7,415 2,270,892 9238 1,814,213 7,415 2,270,892 9,238
during the year
Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current 2,426,815 9,991 1,754,214 7,147 2,426,815 9,991 1,754,214 7,147
ggg(‘)t;'tf“ara”tee 17,413,838 71,693 18,244,179 74,326 17,413,838 71,693 18,244,179 74,326
19,840,653 81,684 19,998,393 81,473 19,840,653 81,684 19,998,393 81,473
CANADIA BANK
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12. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss

The Group The Bank

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group The Bank

2022 2021 2022 2021
us$ Million uUs$ Million us$ Million US$ Million
KHR KHR KHR KHR
Principal lease payments 1,929,673 7,887 1,644,499 6,690 1,929,673 7,887 1,644,499 6,690
Interest paid 1,410,525 5765 1,448,558 5893 1,410,525 5,765 1,448,558 5,893
T";' s:s';:“tﬂc’w 3,340,198 13,652 3,093,057 12,583 3,340,198 13,652 3,093,057 12,583
Interest expense on 1,410,525 5,765 1,448,558 5,893 1,410,525 5,765 1,448,558 5,893
lease liabilities (Note 27)
Depreciation charge
for right-of-use assets 2,578,160 10,536 2,505,745 10,193 2,578,160 10,537 2,505,745 10,193
(Note 31)
Expenses relating to leases
of low-value assets, and 4 50 05 5,867 1,070,949 4,357 1,423,237 5,817 1,057,789 4,303

short-term leases assets
(Note 32)

Maturity analysis is included in Note 39.3 liquidity risk.

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

uUs$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR

Non-current
As at 1 January
Cost 5,785,518 5,668,272 5,663,339 5,521,244
Accumulated amortisation (4,414,224) (3,999,496) (4,295,146) (3,854,955)
Net book value 1,371,294 1,668,776 1,368,193 1,666,289
For the year ended 31 December
Opening net book value 1,371,294 1,668,776 1,368,193 1,666,289
Additions 668,398 142,095 668,398 142,095
Foreign operation translation - cost - (24,849) - -
Foreign ngration translation - accumulated ) 26,497 ) B

depreciation
Amortisation charge (501,756) (441,225) (500,648) (440,191)
Closing net book value 1,537,936 1,371,294 1,535,943 1,368,193
At 31 December 2021
Cost 6,453,916 5,785,518 6,331,737 5,663,339
Accumulated amortisation (4,915,980) (4,414,224) (4,795,794) (4,295,146)
Net book value 1,537,936 1,371,294 1,535,943 1,368,193
In Million KHR equivalent 6,332 5,587 6,323 5,574

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investment in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements represents the net consideration paid
for the acquisition of the unquoted shares of the subsidiary.

The Group's and the Bank’s management assesses that there were no impairment losses on
investment in subsidiary during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The Group The Bank

us$ Million KHR us$ Million KHR
The Bank
Non-current
Cana Securities Ltd. 11,000,000 45,287 11,000,000 44,814
Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. 28,005,880 115,300 18,005,880 73,356
39,005,880 160,587 29,005,880 118,170

On 26 October 2022, the Bank increased an investment of US$ 10,000,000 in Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. The
increase in share capital of Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. is approved by BoL on 28 November 2022. Initially,
the Bank and CIHP together incorporated Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (CBL) in Lao People’s Democratic
Republic (P.D.R) and respectively owned 49% and 51% of the equity interest of CBL. Though with 49%

CANADIA BANK
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 15. DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS - NET
(CONTINUED)

interest, the Bank has signed an agreement with CIHP allowing the Bank the control over CBL and the

rights to govern financial and operating policies of CBL. Upon the Bank increased its investment in Q)
CBL, the Bank and CIHP respectively own 68% and 32% of the equity interest of CBL, and the Bank

still has the controls over CBL.

Deferred tax assets:

Provision for Unearned Impairment Lease
employee loan fees loss liabilities
benefits
15. DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS - NET US$ Uss Uss US$ Uss
The Group
The Group The Bank 2022
2022 2021 2022 2021 At 1 January 2022 2,598,146 4,294,176 6,222,845 4,004,099 17,119,266
Us$ Million us$ Million us$ Million US$ Million Charged to profit or loss (995,430) (401,731) (1,559,816) (25,968) (2,982,945)
KHR KHR KHR KHR ; )
Credited to other comprehensive
Non-current income 32,898 B ) ) 32,898
Deferred tax assets 14,169,219 58,335 17,119,266 69,744 14,131,870 58,181 17,091,280 69,630 At 31 December 2022 1,635,614 3,892,445 4,663,029 3,978,131 14,169,219
In Million KHR equivalent 6,734 16,025 19,198 16,378 58,335
Deferred tax liabilities  (20,382,563)  (83,918) (7,768,348)  (31,648) (20,373,307) (83,877) (7,754,520) (31,592) d
Deferred tax (6,213,344)  (25583) 9,350,918 38,09  (6,241,437)  (25696)  9,336760 38,038 2021
(liabilities)/assets - net
At 1 January 2022 2,529,701 4,594,880 7,257,856 3,874,564 18,257,001
The movement of net deferred tax assets during the year as follows: Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 68,445 (300,704) (1,035,011) 129,535 (1,137,735)
At 31 December 2021 2,598,146 4,294,176 6,222,845 4,004,099 17,119,266
The Group The Bank In Million KHR equivalent 10,585 17,494 25,352 16,313 69,744
2022 2021 2022 2021
us$ Million us$ Million Us$  Million Us$  Million The Bank
KHR KHR KHR KHR 2022
At 1 January 2022 2,598,146 4,294,176 6,199,279 3,999,679 17,091,280
At 1 January 9,350,918 38,096 10,360,310 41,907 9,336,760 38,038 10,360,310 41,907 Charged to profit or loss (995,430) (401,731) (1,563,600) (31,547) (2,992,308)
h fi - -
Esjrged OPONEOT T 3,969,173)  (16222)  (1,009,392)  (4,106) (3,983,107) (16,279) (1,023550) (4,164) Credited to other comprehensive 32,898 - ) ) 32898
Income
Charged to other At 31 December 2022 1,635,614 3,892,445 4,635,679 3,968,132 14,131,870
comprehensive (11,595,089)  (47,389) - - (11,595,090) (47,389) - -
incomes In Million KHR equivalent 6,734 16,025 19,085 16,337 58,181
Culirency translation ) (68) B 295 _ (66) _ 295
difference 2021
At 31 December (6,213,344) (25,583) 9,350,918 38,096 (6,241,437) (25,696) 9,336,760 38,038
At 1 January 2022 2,529,701 4,594,880 7,257,856 3,874,564 18,257,001
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 68,445 (300,704) (1,058,577) 125,115 (1,165,721)
At 31 December 2021 2,598,146 4,294,176 6,199,279 3,999,679 17,091,280
In Million KHR equivalent 10,585 17,494 25,256 16,295 69,630
109 110
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Total
Us$

Uss

Accelerated
depreciation

assets
Us$

Right-of-use

Deferred tax liabilities

15. DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (CONTINUED)
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20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis: The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted

Impact on defined benefit obligation

principal assumptions is:

2022 2021

Increase in 0.50% Decrease in 0.5% Increase in 0.50% Decrease in 0.5%

In % In % In % In %
c c c
.9 .9 .0

® ® ® Assumptions

- - -

o o o Discount rate -2.11% 2.23% -3.31% 3.56%
o o of

Salary growth NA NA 3.54% -3.32%

Withdrawal rate 1.17% -1.24% -0.01% 0.02%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions

Due to a lack of published mortality table in Cambodia, Thailand Mortality Ordinary

2017, the most recent published mortality table in Thailand, is used for this valuation.
To be in line with the Bank’s retirement policy, the normal retirement age is 60 years for
all employees. For those who are currently over 60 years, they are assumed to retire by

denominated with similar tenor, provides similar rates. The change in rate was from the
The Bank built a salary growth expectation while in 2022, the policy was changed as

The Bank used the rate of government bond of a neighbouring country in the currency

recent market movement of general increase in interest rate.
This is the assumption of the withdrawal rate by age group.
The disability rate is assumed to be at 5.0% of mortality rates.

the end of the following year.

™
o
.. )
% ke may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
< < actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
= o . . . . . . .
” wi e projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
o 2 th the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has b pplied h
@ g calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the statement of financial position.
o
'48_ _O
= - - g The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
N N N I . .
— 2 = = S E compared to the prior period.
[ — = — Eo) 7
0 _ ) ) o @
© Q e < Ne) +©
L E £ M ES5E5c¢ A = S
T 3 2223 2 E 21. CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
: = O IS £ o c < < c o
O [l S 5 [a ©cr 0o o B £
o Conon O o
= - s B : . 2323 3% o = 2 , . N ,
- 5 - 5 - R 2 R 0 - [ — 0 The movements of the Group’s and the Bank’s income tax liabilities are as follows:
Z 9 o K o o S C Qg o TN \Oo ]
R 2 o ‘T —
E < El.: M 77 c M:: Ss
8 % The Group The Bank
™~
~ B § g g S 2022 2021 2022 2021
"I’_’ g < Q T B g US$  Million US$  Million Us$  Million us$  Million
— © 2 2 c e £ 3 K 2 KHR KHR KHR KHR
LL = £ £ £ § § & £ Ke =
= o o =] o >
© v} v} c € ¢ ¢ v = R
Ll m 2 e . g & & & ¢ kN S
Z o g 3 55k o £ g At 1 January 25,813,464 105,164 27,126,087 109,725 25,779,866 105,027 27,053,454 109,431
= ™ 8 = a0 o =
L = - 2 T S ° E £y Currentincome tax 26,574,139 108,609 26,459,960 107,639 26,490,181 108,265 26,391,922 107,362
m ‘8 : o o : o o g S : 5 \00 o expense
X I o .o Lo o .o = Q > ;
[TT] 2 -% < 2 2 é < N == © g < 'E g 3 Income tax paid (26,526,970) (108,416) (27,772,583) (112,979) (26,464,579) (108,161) (27,665,510) (112,543)
o o o .
E 2 S i *g_ *g_ Gurrency translation - 1,111 - 779 - 1,110 - 777
>
o £ o 2 7 o 2
] 3 o o [ 0 2 2 0 2
o $ S S .g S ._g " o 0\783 8 ._g At 31 December 25,860,633 106,468 25,813,464 105,164 25,805,468 106,241 25,779,866 105,027
b4 o S o g = [ 0 » < c 2 @
= 5 s i EF 0§ HE v 5 He oid
g 5 2 2 = o ‘Ml T o oo o 5 B -
" R TR < S S < ERS > KN > > G
. 3 & B E 2 g 56888 2 R
o T 8 ¢ s 3 £862< & 5 85
N & £ ir &) 3 Q = a) = 0 x
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2lglg|glelglel |2 e s  Bl2s 23. SUBORDINATED DEBTS (CONTINUED)
xS |®|n|I9|NQ |9 9 = o @ | N|9
S R R R N NS I PN < S R|8lg
S S & & This represents a long-term unsecured borrowing from Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Keav Se, Chairman, with
s s the principal outstanding as at 31 December 2022 of US$90,000,000 (2021: US$105,000,000) based
S S on various agreements and terms range from five to seven years with interest rate ranging from 7.00%
NAIR|IBIZ2NI RS S| S o « Q8K o o o
SS9 |R|S|0|x|3 & o~ 3 S | =8 to 8.82% (2021: from 7.00% to 8.82%) per annum.
HHHEECEE . - R
~e @ ) & @ e 10 Q|9 The Bank obtained approvals from the NBC on 01 December 2022 allowing to include the additional
S - - . . . . .
< > subordinated debts of US$17,000,000 in Tier Il capital for the purpose of Net Worth calculation.
m X |[Oo | N|T| ™| || | ' [ & o O | o|N
) T bl m|od | —| O © Ne) N n o~ | 1|y
2 Y| |w|n|alo|n o || o o x N ~| o N . . .
= SR DS |20 |7 © @ 0 v o §R The movement of subordinated debts during the year is as follow:
= - — - — N
= s
= The Group and the Bank
N N
Rlglcl2l3312l5l2 |22 S RIELE 2022 2021
Q| Q|0 | 9| —|N oo @ o ~N ~N N
SIN SIS o9 9 0 o >lg e us$ Million KHR us$ Million KHR
ol =|ol%|I~& ® & @ i w | S|y
O~ | O | WO | | — g g g 5 g m 0~8 g
At 1 January 105,709,025 430,659 120,795,348 488,617
X |O|O|V|T|N|L| M o] ™ Additions 17,000,000 69,479 - -
T8 [2|&|18 |3 | S & )
>é Slelal33e 2:_ o 2‘ Repayments (32,000,000) (130,784) (15,000,000) (61,020)
§ Interest charges 8,548,805 34,939 10,035,685 40,825
Interest paid (8,718,092) (35,631) (10,122,008) (41,176)
b Currency translation difference - 4,090 - 3,413
o 1
MBS |Q RSN N N At 31 December 90,539,738 372,752 105,709,025 430,659
S n|@jo|®n|S| 99 ol 9
ool m| o | O s o~ o~
B8« |S |8 5 o o
~ g o | — < g‘ =5
o N N 24. SHARE CAPITAL
o
£ 1813233188 o 3 The total authorised amount of share capital comprises 650 million shares (2021: 580 million shares)
D[t |~ | 0| 0| M| e — =] . . .
g NI N N N with a par value of US$1 per share (2021: US$1 per share). All issued shares have been fully paid for.
=
g i T
S22 |R[8185|38 318 m Uss Million KHR uss Million KHR
o ||| 9| | N o o o [TT]
n| oo M| | OO0 N N o
wn B38| 8 )19 R %] 8 O
|£ R Rl Il I S & ) fa) Share capital - paid-up 650,000,000 2,600,000 580,000,000 2,320,000
-
— m
w =
E < The movements of share capital were as follows:’
: " E At 1 January 580,000,000 2,320,000 490,000,000 1,960,000
Q
5 g g Ajf'v'it('joe”na;l share capital from cash 70,000,000 280,000 90,000,000 360,000
g2
I 2. -§ -(% " o 2 At 31 December 650,000,000 2,600,000 580,000,000 2,320,000
= AR
= IR D 53
=] e © Q. - t -8 =
O ele|le| 8|3 S wn S| % S
X | 'n | &2 o c It
] + [0} © © — = o] = - =
° Tlae|l S| 20 c | 3 S 2 2 c | 3
N SO|oa|F|<|<|0O S|z N € | a 3|z
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Group and the Bank entered into a number of transactions with related parties in the normal
course of business. The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balance at the year end
and relating expenses and income for the year are as follows:

a) Related parties and relationship

The related parties of the Group and the Bank are as follows:

Related party Relationship

Ultimate parent Canadia Investment Holding Plc.

Subsidiaries Cana Securities Ltd.

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd.
Related companies/affiliates All entities under the same ultimate parent
company
Key management personnel
All directors and key management (including
their close family members) of the Group and the
Bank who make critical decisions in relation to the
strategic direction of the Group and the Bank

The following transactions were carried out with related parties. All the transactions were made on

normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rate.

b) Loans to directors and key management

US$  Million KHR US$  Million KHR
The Group and Bank
Outstanding loan balances 1,837,071 7,563 2,275,080 9,269
Interest income 110,285 451 147,023 598

Loans and advances to key management personnel and subsidiary are unsecured and bear interest
rates of 5.00% to 8.50% per annum (2021: 5.00% to 8.00% per annum). Allowances for expected credit
losses for loans to related parties were US$7,739 for the Group and the Bank. (2021: US$17,001).

c) Loan to related parties

Us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR

The Group and Bank Other related companies

Outstanding loan balances

32,737,127 134,779 75,990,265 309,584

Interest income

2,774,562 11,340 2,827,576 11,503

Loans and advances to other related companies are unsecured and bear interest rates of 7.50%%
to 8.50%% per annum (2021: 7.00% to 8.50% per annum). Allowances for expected credit losses for
loans to other related companies were US$129,572 for the Group and the Bank (2021: US$232,085).

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

d)

Deposits from related parties

The Bank

The Group

2021

2022

Uss$

2021

2022
us$

Million KHR

Million KHR

Million KHR

Us$

Million KHR

5,325
494,413

1,307,178
121,358,002

5,438
123,269
34,360
29,009
192,076

1,307,178 5,325 1,320,789
494,413 29,941,487

121,358,002

5,438
123,269

1,320,789
29,941,487

Ultimate holding company

Other related companies

33,573
38,773
572,084

8,240,857
9,517,151
140,423,188

8,328,147 33,929 8,345,915
7,046,101
46,654,292

36,266

8,808,730

Directors and key management

Subsidiaries

533,667

130,993,327

164,973

40,071,006

6,732

1,655,531 6,735 3,316,431 13,554 1,654,917

13,573

3,320,988

Interest expense

Interest rate (per annum):

The Bank

The Group

2021

2022

2021

2022

0% - 0.25%

0.50% - 6.75%
0.50% - 6.00%

0% - 0.45%
0% - 7.00%

0% - 0.25%
0.50% - 6.50%

0% - 7.00%

0% - 0.25%

0% - 7.00%
0.50% - 6.50% 0.50% - 6.00%

Ultimate holding company

Other related companies

Directors and key management

0% - 5.75%

0% - 6.25%

Nil

Nil

Subsidiaries
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 238 8 203 YR
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e) Deposits and placements with related parties N 8
N Ol Mmoo | m LA o Lo O <
O | 00| O | O (V2] o ™ o~ <
> Q| @ 0|9 > S| o | ¥ 2
<t | o1 o Ne) < o~
The Group Rl S o o ° 9 N
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Group’s and the Bank’s customers,
clients or market counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual obligations to the Group and the Bank.
Credit risk arises from deposits and placements with central banks and other banks, loans and
advances, investment securities at amortised cost, other financial assets at amortised cost, and credit
commitments. Credit exposure arises principally in lending activities.

a) Credit risk measurement

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.

Central banks have no historical loss, and with strong capacity to meet obligation in near term, expected
credit loss for deposits and placements with central banks are nil. Deposits and placements with other
banks are considered to be low credit risk. The credit ratings of these assets are monitored for credit
deterioration. Measurement for impairment is limited to 12-month expected credit loss. Investment
securities at amortised cost and other financial assets at amortised cost are monitored for its credit
rating deterioration, and the measurement of impairment follows a three-stage approach in Note 39.1
(c). Expected credit loss for other financial assets is insignificant.

For loans and advances and credit commitments, the estimation of credit exposure for risk management
purposes requires the use of models, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions,
expected cash flows and the passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets
entails further estimations as to the likelihood of default occurring, of the associated loss ratios and
of default correlations between counterparties. The Group and the Bank measure credit risk using
Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) for the purposes
of measuring Expected Credit Loss under CIFRS 9.

b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group and the Bank operate and provide loans and advances to individuals or enterprises within
the Kingdom of Cambodia. The Group and the Bank manage limits and control the concentration of
credit risk whenever it is identified.

The Group and the Bank employ a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most
traditional of these is the taking of security in the form of collateral for loans and advances. The Group
and the Bank implement guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk
mitigation. The principal collateral types as security for loans and advances are:

. mortgages over residential properties (land, building and other properties); and
. charges over business assets such as land and buildings

CANADIA BANK
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
39.1 Credit risk (continued)

c) Impairment (expected credit loss), write-off, and modification of financial assets policies

The measurement of expected credit loss allowance under the CIFRS 9's three-stage approach is to
recognise lifetime expected credit loss allowance for financial instruments for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial origination or is credit-impaired as at the reporting date.
The financial instrument which has not undergone any significant deterioration in credit risk shall be
recognised with 12-month expected credit loss allowance.

Under the three-stage approach, the financial instrument is allocated into three stages based on the
relative movement in the credit risk.

J Stage 1 includes financial instruments that neither have a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition nor credit-impaired as at reporting date. For these assets,
12-month expected credit loss allowance are recognised.

. Stage 2 includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition but do not have objective evidence of impairment. For these
assets, lifetime expected credit loss allowance are recognised.

. Stage 3 includes financial instruments that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date. For these assets, lifetime expected credit loss allowance are recognised.

. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are
credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their expected credit loss allowance is always
measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group and the Bank in addressing the
requirements of the standard on the measurement of allowances are:

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (SICR):

The assessment of SICR shall be a multifactor and holistic analysis and based on a mixture of
quantitative and/or qualitative information. To determine whether the risk of default of a loan/
financing has increased significantly since initial recognition, the current risk of default at the
reporting date is compared with the risk of default at initial recognition. A borrower is considered
to have credit risk increased significantly since initial recognition if past due is 30 days or more.

(i) Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group and the Bank define a financial instrument as in default which is also credit-impaired when
it meets one of the following criteria:

J The borrower/obligor is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments for a
short-term facility.

. The borrower/obligor is 90 days past due or more on its contractual payments for a long-
term facility.

o The loan is forced impaired due to various reasons, such as bankruptcy, significant
financial difficulty, etc. In the event where a loan is not in default or past due but force
impaired, the loan shall be classified as impaired upon approval by the management.
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39.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.1 Credit risk (continued)

c) Impairment (expected credit loss), write-off, and modification of financial assets policies
(continued)

(i) Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (continued)

. Restructuring and rescheduling of a loan facility involves any substantial modification
made to the original repayment terms and conditions of the loan facility following an
increase in the credit risk of an obligor/counterparty.

. When an obligor/counterparty has multiple loans with the Group and the Bank and cross
default obligation applies, an assessment of provision is required under which default of
one debt obligation triggers default on another debt obligation (cross default). Where
there is no right to set off clause is available, assessment of provision needs to be
performed on individual loan level instead of consolidated obligor/counterparty level.

. Write-off/charged-off accounts.
(iii) Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or lifetime basis depending
on whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an
asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the
Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD), and Exposure at Default (EAD), defined as
follows:

. The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as
per Definition of default and credit-impaired above), either over the next 12 months
(12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

. Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Group’s and the Bank'’s expectation of the
extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and
seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support. LGD is
a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default (EAD). LGD is calculated
on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months and lifetime LGD is
the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs over the remaining
expected lifetime of the loan.

. EAD is based on the amounts the Group and the Bank expect to be owed at the time
of default, over the next 12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime
EAD).

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD, and EAD for each future year and for each collective
segment. These three components are multiplied together. This effectively calculates an ECL for each
future year, which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used
in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.1 Credit risk (continued)

c) Impairment (expected credit loss), write-off, and modification of financial assets policies
(continued)

(iii) Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques
(continued)

The lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD.

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors which impact the recoveries
made post default.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, which
varies by product type.

. For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is based on the contractual
repayments owed by the borrower over a 12-month or lifetime basis.

. For revolving products, utilisation rate at default is incorporated to project future
expected outstanding balance by considering the credit limit or undrawn balance in
12M EAD and lifetime EAD.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation are monitored and reviewed periodically. There have
been no significant changes in estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
reporting period.

(iv) Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The estimation of ECL considers forward-looking information. The Group and the Bank have performed
statistical analysis based on historical experience to identify the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

The analysis is performed on PD to understand the impact changes in these variables have had
historically on default rate. Historical economic variables for analysis are sourced from an external
research house. The statistical regression analysis shows no relationship of these economic variables
on historical default rate, which is a reflective relationship of the current economic condition.

The Group and the Bank assess that the unadjusted historical information is the best reasonable and
supportable information, so forward-looking information was not incorporated at 31 December 2022.

The Group and the Bank are to periodically perform statistical analysis and monitor its portfolio’s
circumstances.

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise analysed within above, such as the impact of any
regulatory, legislative or political changes, have also been considered, but are not deemed to have a
material impact and therefore no adjustment has been made to the ECL for such factors.

The Group and the Bank periodically perform assessment on the appropriateness of the proxies used
on its portfolio’s circumstances.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.1 Credit risk (continued)

c) Impairment (expected credit loss), write-off, and modification of financial assets policies
(continued)

(v) Grouping of exposure for ECL measured on collective basis

For expected credit loss provisions modelled on a collective basis, a grouping of exposures is
performed on the basis of shared risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are
homogeneous.

In performing this grouping, there must be sufficient information for the group to be statistically
credible. Where sufficient information is not available internally, the Group and the Bank have
considered benchmarking internal/external supplementary data to use for modelling purposes. The
appropriateness of groupings is monitored and reviewed on a periodic basis.

(vi) Write off policy

Write-off is usually taken when relevant recovery actions have been exhausted or further recovery

is not economically feasible or justifiable. When a loan or debt instrument is deemed uncollectible,
it is written off against the related allowance for impairment. Such loans are either written off in full
or partially after taking into consideration the realisable value of collateral (if any) and when in the
judgement of the management, there is no prospect of recovery. All write-offs must be approved by
The Board of Directors or its delegated authorities.

(vii)  Modification of loans

The Group and the Bank sometimes renegotiate or otherwise modify the contractual cash flows of
loans to customers. When this happens, the Group and the Bank assess whether or not the new terms
are substantially different to the original terms. The Group and the Bank do this by considering, among
others, the following factors:

o If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual
cash flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.
J Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/equity-based

return that substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.

Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.
Significant change in the interest rate.

Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly

affect the credit risk associated with the loan.

The risk of default of such loans after modification is assessed at the reporting date and compared
with the risk under the original terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial
and so does not result in derecognition of the original loans. The Group and the Bank monitor the
subsequent performance of modified assets. The Group and the Bank may determine that the credit
risk has significantly improved after restructuring, so that the assets are moved from Stage 3 or Stage
2 (Lifetime ECL) to Stage 1 (12-month ECL).
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.1 Credit risk (continued)

d) Maximum exposures to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements of

the Group and the Bank are as follows:

Maximum credit Maximum credit
exposure exposure

Uss$ Million KHR
The Group
31 December 2022
On Balance sheet items
Deposits and placements with other banks 637,084,445 637,084,445
Loans and advances to customers 4,833,641,996 4,833,641,996
Investment securities at amortised cost 53,862,042 53,862,042
Other financial assets 81,301,761 81,301,761
Total 5,605,890,244 5,605,890,244
Off-Balance sheet items
Unusec'i por‘flon 01.c .a|.:>proved credit facilities, guarantees, acceptances and 155.581,512 155581512
other financial facilities
The Group
31 December 2021
On Balance sheet items
Deposits and placements with other banks 409,016,012 1,666,331
Loans and advances to customers 4,754,843,135 19,371,231
Investment securities 8,337,563 33,968
Other financial assets 81,251,017 334,511
Total 5,172,196,710 21,071,530
Off-Balance sheet items
Unused portion of approved credit facilities, guarantees, acceptances and 147,451,463 600,717
other financial facilities
The Bank
31 December 2022
On Balance sheet items
Deposits and placements with other banks 641,496,319 2,641,040
Loans and advances to customers 4,817,962,120 19,835,550
Other financial assets 50,776,875 209,048
Total 5,591,486,331 23,020,149
Off-Balance sheet items
Total 155,523,171 640,289
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.1 Credit risk (continued)

d) Maximum exposures to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements of

the Group and the Bank are as follows: (continued)

Maximum credit Maximum credit
exposure exposure

uUs$ Million KHR
The Bank
31 December 2021
On Balance sheet items
Deposits and placements with other banks 402,501,792 1,639,792
Loans and advances to customers 4,739,389,711 19,308,274
Other financial assets 7,995,356 32,574
Total 5,149,886,859 20,980,640
Off-Balance sheet items
Total 147,336,060 600,247

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Group and the Bank, since
collateral held and/or other credit enhancement attached were not taken into account. For on-balance
sheet assets, the exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts. As shown above, 97.5%
for the Group and the Bank (2021: 99.8%) of total maximum exposure is derived from deposits and
placements with other banks and loans and advances. While deposits and placements with other banks
are low credit risk, management is confident of its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal
exposure on creditrisk resulting from the Group’s and the Bank'’s loans and advances due to the following:

J Almost all loans and advances are collateralised
J The Group and the Bank have a proper credit evaluation process in place for granting of loans
and advances to customers.

e)  Credit quality of financial assets

Loans and advances and credit commitments

The Group and the Bank assess credit quality of loans, advances and financing using NBC
classification. Credit quality description is summarised as follows:

Credit Quality

Description

Standard monitoring
Special monitoring

Default/Credit impaired

CANADIA BANK
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Obligors in this category exhibit strong capacity to meet financial
commitment.

Obligors in this category have a fairly acceptable capacity to meet financial
commitments.

Obligors are assessed to be impaired.

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.1 Credit risk (continued)

e) Credit quality of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets other than loans and advances and credit commitments

The credit quality of financial instruments other than loans, advances and financing are determined
based on the ratings of counterparties as defined equivalent ratings of other internationals rating

agencies as defined below:

Credit Quality

Description

Sovereign

Investment grade

Non-investment grade

No rating

Credit impaired

Refer to financial assets issued by central banks or guarantees by central

banks.

Refers to the credit quality of the financial asset that the issuer is able to
meet payment obligation and exposure bondholder to low credit risk of
default.

Refers to low credit quality of the financial asset that is highly exposed to
default risk.

Refers to financial assets which are currently not assigned with ratings due
to unavailability of ratings models.

Refers to the asset that is being impaired.
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8 sl [ ]glglglals 3] |8 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
S ~ < < N | N < <
3 B3 T9IR 2 @
s 2 2&aleln 2 L2 39.1 Credit risk (continued)
° o R B B
9) Concentration of financial assets with credit risk exposure
g2£3q ol=slglelgl gl v alR S o i Industry sector
S E 21585322885 & |5 !
go e NMEIEIERIEINIEIEES X & , ‘ : : :
58" AR R S I A - ) e - ¥ The following table provides a breakdown of the Group's and the Bank’s main credit exposure at their
< = ¥ = < = = «® 3 carrying amounts, as categorised by industry sector.
© 1S
m [e]
-E’ g Hcé § L’%\ 5 "(g § § § o & § %— Deposits and Loans and
SR AN IS oS ™ S S lacements with advances to Investment
< O| Sl o] o] N| & o 7o) £ P
5 | = £ 5 ,Qi | Q (‘% = 5 other banks customers securities Other assets Total
E ST Y R I A N £ uss us$ uss uss uss
- 3
&= The Group
[
| Nl Bl S S s ] — 0 = 31 December 2022
@ 3 NENEENEIES > |18 3
< | gl ol o o | » 9 % o Financial institutions 637,084,445 147,695,810 - - 784,780,255
c o~ N — €
1<) ~N YN o Y| o oy .
€ I RS, | O < y 2 Services - 593,975,944 - 81,301,761 675,277,705
= = g Housing - 912,255,418 - - 912,255,418
— =
0 — P o - © Building and constructions - 1,687,274,645 - - 1,687,274,645
8o = wl ol [ JF = NG) Ie) o ]
Ll el N~ ol S| 9 AN 10 o > Wholesale and retails - 664,188,260 - - 664,188,260
- & AN & I £
> = = 28 &5 g 0 % Import and export - 158,134,893 - - 158,134,893
™ - | Kl ™ =
|: — o = 3 Agriculture - 155,431,737 - - 155,431,737
(2] %
z g S Others - 514,685,289 53,862,042 - 568,547,331
J73 @ ololslol ]l =l &l FIR < ~ 2
O ol n —| O ~ [ee] < | ™S o O o)
(@) e o £ S8 2 &S 28 s & |8 3
O 3 EE S8R SRNE R (& |8 o
-~ 8 s 2 N lg N NS o S — 2 Total 637,084,445 4,833,641,996 53,862,042 81,301,761 5,605,890,244
[o} w E — o~ ~| | = =
= I 3 i = il it I B -
o) = o T
Z O O o . .
w % o IR olal v & © @ g | . - _g In Million KHR equivalent 2,622,877 19,899,896 221,750 334,719 23,079,242
> = &7 25 NPR Y B8 3 = <
s SIS ot 2 el ™ S 5
= 3 go g S~ % @RSy % w5
TT) - B8 = NS N S| ) oY o8 52 6% 9 31 December 2021
0 c w < RN ol I 7| = N N
= C) o = a)
< > = & Financial institutions 409,016,012 135,166,187 - - 544,182,199
= =
© | ol - Bl I | m| & ! — o~ 4 :
z 0 Qla % % g ;;; § > E ﬁ\ gri qé')’ Services - 629,310,626 - 8,337,563 637,648,189
| f < | <t T - y| N S [ee} o~ © .
< : : 22 d g8l ] I Housing - 900,024,266 - - 900,024,266
E '_g Ng S| °l < :': NS ~ ° Building and constructions - 1,479,669,922 - - 1,479,669,922
- e -}
\ T g Wholesale and retails - 731,865,967 - - 731,865,967
o c - e
'é’ - 2 39 3 9 % Import and export - 185,263,859 - : 185,263,859
T c o =|<|¢ =
I 0| 212 g Agriculture - 185,057,449 - - 185,057,449
-l < ) ® 2l al o a 5
'E 9 ®] 2] % - o il o
< 5 ) = g z 6|2 g 3 Others - 508,484,859 - 508,484,859
O ¢ 8 ©° 5 AEAE 5 g 2
O & ¢ 2 T | Q ] £
~ C 9 a A = Q0 Q0 = ]
@© O 3 O | o [
Z % : o 9 =23 " 5 2| Z Total 409,016,012 4,754,843,135 - 8337563 5,172,196,710
& 0 e |2 - T 3 o g
< = = g S8 |89 %2585 sl |14 °©o
2 T o 0 s 2188 ¢8leléls 2 | < x| &
» | S5 sl el o | o8 - .
_— 0 u g § |5 32|20 05|58 5 o ¥ | = In Million KHR equivalent 1,666,331 19,371,231 - 33,968 21,071,530
u () N ) Q2 © O O| 0| O| @ o n © [}
Elovol®|C|C|C|8|2(8|el|2 o 5| *
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.1 Credit risk (continued)

g) Concentration of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

i Industry sector (continued)

Deposits and

placements with

Investment
securities at

Loans and
advances to

other banks customers amortised cost  Other assets Total
Uss Us$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$
The Bank
31 December 2022
Financial institutions 641,496,319 147,695,810 - - 789,192,129
Services - 592,961,845 - 81,251,017 674,212,862
Housing - 912,255,418 - - 912,255,418
Building and constructions - 1,677,706,608 - - 1,677,706,608
Wholesale and retails - 664,188,260 - - 664,188,260
Import and export - 158,134,893 - - 158,134,893
Agriculture - 155,377,371 - - 155,377,371
Others - 509,641,915 50,776,875 - 560,418,790
Total 641,496,319 4,817,962,120 50,776,875 81,251,017 5,591,486,331
In Million KHR equivalent 2,641,040 19,835,550 209,048 334,511 23,020,149
31 December 2021
Financial institutions 402,501,792 135,166,187 - - 537,667,979
Services - 627,682,734 - 7,995,356 635,678,090
Housing - 900,024,266 - - 900,024,266
Building and constructions - 1,471,766,838 - - 1,471,766,838
Wholesale and retails - 727,954,276 - - 727,954,276
Import and export - 185,263,859 - - 185,263,859
Agriculture - 184,949,138 - - 184,949,138
Others - 506,582,413 - - 506,582,413
Total 402,501,792 4,739,389,711 - 7,995,356 5,149,886,859
In Million KHR equivalent 1,639,792 19,308,274 - 32,574 20,980,640

CANADIA BANK
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
39.2 Market risk

The Group and the Bank take exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk arises
from open positions in interest rates, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general
and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as
interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The Group and the Bank do not use derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contracts
and interest rate swaps to hedge its risk exposure.

a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group and the Bank operate in Cambodia and transacts in many currencies, and is exposed to
currency risks primarily with respect to Khmer Riel, and others are not significant.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s and the Bank’s functional currency.

Management monitors foreign exchange risk against the Group’s and the Bank’s functional currency.
However, the Group and the Bank do not hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities using forward contracts.

The Group's and the Bank’s policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within acceptable limits and
within existing regulatory guidelines.

The table below summarises the Group’s and the Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate
risk. Included in the table are the Group’s and the Bank’s financial instruments at their carrying amounts
by currency in US$ equivalent.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
39.2 Market risk (continued)

a)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As shown in the table above, the Group and the Bank are primarily exposed to changes in USD/KHR
exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from

US-dollar denominated financial instruments.
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

1% -1% -1% -1%

Depreciation Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation

us$ us$ us$ uUs$
The Group
KHR 719,210 (704,968) 697,133 (683,329)
Others 177,190 (173,681) 494,592 (484,798)
896,400 (878,649) 1,191,725 (1,168,127)
In Million KHR equivalents 3,664 (3,591) 4,855 (4,759)
The Bank
KHR 707,462 (693,453) 689,103 (675,457)
Others (153,546) 150,506 302,613 (296,620)
553,916 (542,947) 991,716 (972,077)
In Million KHR equivalent 2,264 (2,219) 4,040 (3,960)

The Group's subsidiary has equity investments at FVOCI which are in KHR. Should the USD/KHR
exchange appreciates or depreciates by 1%, the impact arises from the fluctuation would result in an
increase or decrease to the Group's other component of equity (OCI) as below.

Impact on
other components of equity

2022 2021

Us$ Us$

1% Appreciation (11,599) (1,336)
In Million KHR equivalent (47) (5)
1% Depreciation 11,832 1,363
In Million KHR equivalent 48 6
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.2 Market risk (continued)

b) Securities price risk

Securities price risk is the risk that changes in the market prices of securities will result in fluctuations in
revenues or in the values of financial assets. The investment securities at amortised cost are not subject
to the changes in the market prices.

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by its subsidiary at
FVOCI. This arises from investments held by the subsidiary for which prices in the future are uncertain.
The Group does not have any particular strategy to manage the risk arising from the fluctuation of
market price. If the price of the equity securities increases/decreases by 10%, the impact to the Group's
other comprehensive income would be approximately US$117,143.

c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Interest margins may increase as
a result of changes but may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.

The Group’s and the Bank’s main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates if any,
which exposes the Group and the Bank to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s and the Bank’s
borrowings consist of only fixed rates (2021: majority of the borrowings at fixed rates are around 85.8%
of the total borrowings of both the Group and the Bank). The Group and the Bank do not have fair
value interest rate risk as the interest rates of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are
similar to prevailing market rates.

The Management of the Group and the Bank at this stage does not have a policy to set limits on
the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken; however, the management
regularly monitors the mismatch. In addition, the Management regularly analyses and foresees the
expected changes in the interest rates and manages cash flow interest rate risk by assessing its impacts
and developed actions to respond to the interest rate risk.

The table below summarises the exposures of the Group and the Bank to interest rate risk. The assets
and liabilities at carrying amount are categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
dates.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.2 Market risk (continued)

c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity

Profit or loss in 2022 was not sensitive to higher or lower interest income from financial instruments
at floating rate as a result of changes in interest rates because there was no financial instruments at

floating rate. There are no other component of equity sensitive to higher or lower interest income from
financial instruments at floating rate as a result of changes in interest rates.

100 bp Increase 100 bp Decrease 100 bp Increase 100 bp Decrease

Us$ Us$ uUs$ Us$
The Group
31 December 2021
Variable rate instruments - - 2,220,078 (2,220,078)
In Million KHR equivalent - - 9,031 (9,031)

100 bp Increase 100 bp Decrease 100 bp Increase 100 bp Decrease

Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
The Bank
31 December 2021
Variable rate instruments - - 2,070,213 (2,070,213)
In Million KHR equivalent - - 8,440 (8,440)

39.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Bank are unable to meet its payment obligations
associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn.
The consequence of this may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors, lenders, and fulfil
commitments to lend.

a) Liquidity risk management process

Management monitors statement of financial position liquidity and manages the concentration
and profile of debt maturities. Monitoring and reporting, taking the form of daily cash position and
projection for the next day, week and month respectively, are key periods for liquidity management. In
addition, management monitors the movement of main depositors and projection of their withdrawals.

CANADIA BANK
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
b) Funding approach

The Group’s and the Bank’s main sources of liquidity arise from shareholders’ capital contribution,
borrowings, subordinated debts, and customers’ deposits. The sources of liquidity are regularly
reviewed by management through review of maturity of term deposits and the key depositors.

c) Non-derivative cash flows

The table below presents the cash flows of the financial instruments by the Group and the Bank by
remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group and the Bank manage the inherent liquidity
risk based on expected undiscounted cash flows.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's and the Bank’s policy is to classify following fair value
hierarchy for its financial instruments at fair value and each class of assets and liabilities not measured
at fair value in the statement of financial position but for which the fair value is disclosed.

Level 1: The fair value of assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates.

Level 3: One or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data.
(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group and the Bank have equity securities measured at fair value. The fair value of the equity
securities is based on the quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period, which is level 1.

(b)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

As at the reporting date, the fair values of financial instruments of the Group and the Bank approximate
their carrying amounts.

The estimated fair values are based on the following methodologies and assumptions:
a. Deposits and placements with the central bank and other banks

The carrying amounts of deposits and placements with the central bank and other banks
approximate their fair values, since these accounts consist mostly of current, savings and short-
term deposits.

b. Loans and advances

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of less than one year, the carrying amounts
are generally reasonable estimates of their fair values.

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of one year and above, fair values are
estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows using a current lending rate as the
prevailing market rates of loans with similar credit risks and maturities have been assessed as
insignificantly different to the contractual lending rates. As a result, the fair value of non-current
loans and advances to customers might approximate to their carrying value at reporting date.

C. Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities at amortised cost are at fixed rate and mature in three years. The fair values
are estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows from the coupon and the face value
using a current coupon rate as the prevailing market rates of corporate bonds with similar credit
risks and maturities have been assessed as insignificantly different to the coupon of the current
securities. As a result, the fair value of the investment securities at amortised cost approximate
to their carrying value at reporting date.

CANADIA BANK
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

39.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

d. Deposits from banks and other financial institutions and customers
The fair values of deposits from customers and deposits from banks and other financial institutions
approximate their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturities,

which include non-interest earning deposits, is the amount repayable on demand.

Deposits with fixed interest are not quoted in the active market and are short-term. Their fair
value approximates the carrying amount.

e. Borrowings and subordinated debts

Borrowings and subordinated debts are not quoted in active market and their fair value
approximates their carrying amount because the borrowing rates are similar to the prevailing
market rates of borrowings with similar terms and maturities

f. Other financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities are assumed to approximate their
fair values due to these items are not materially sensitive to the shift in market interest rates.
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Chbar Ampov Branch

#625, National Road #1, Phum Derm Slaeng, Sang-
kat Chbar Ampov 2, Khan Chbar Ampov, Phnom
Penh,

Cambodia

+855 23 720 068

+855 23720 070

Kambol Branch

National Road #4, (Phnom Penh Special Economic
Zone), Phum Tropeang Kol, Sangkat Kantok, Khan
Posenchey, Phnom Penh,

Cambodia

+855 23 968 787

Koh Pich Branch

Arc De Triomphe De Koh Pich (South Wing) Builbing,
St. Koh Pich, Sangkat Tonle Bassac, Khan Chamkar-
morn, Phnom Penh, Cambodia

+855 23 888 175

+855 23 888 176

Phsar Heng Ly Branch

#27B, St. 271, Sangkat Toek Thla, Khan Sen Sok,
Phnom Penh, Cambodia

+855 23 880 316

+855 23 880 317

Prek Leap Branch

National Road # 6A, Sangkat Chroy Changva, Khan
Chroy Changva, Phnom Penh,

Cambodia

+855 23 432 295

+855 23 432 296

Stat Chas Branch

#A15, St. 93 corner 70 corner 900, Sangkat Sras
Chork, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh, Cambodia
+855 23 427 217

+855 23 427 225

Takhmao Branch

#2, St. 204, Phum Takhmao, Sangkat Takhmao, Kro-
ng Takhmao, Kandal Province, Cambodia

+855 23 425 885

+855 23 425 886

Vithei Kampuchea Krom Branch

#139, Kampuchea Krom Blvd. (128), Sangkat Mit-
tapheap, Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh,
Cambodia

+855 23 885 371

+855 23 885 372

IFL Branch

No 132 & 134, Russian Federation Blvd., Sangkat
Tuek Lak Ti Muoy, Khan Tuol Kork, Phnom Penh.
+855 23 902 136

+855 23 902 137

CANADIA BANK
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Chenla Branch

Mao Tse Tung Blvd., Corner Preah Monireth Blvd.,
Sangkat Phsar Derm Kor, Khan Tuol Kork, Phnom
Penh, Cambodia

+855 23 880 619

+855 23 880 620

Kbal Thnal Branch

#480, St.271, Sangkat Phsar Derm Thkov, Khan
Chamkarmorn, Phnom Penh,

Cambodia

+855 23 968 788

+855 23 222 768

North Bridge Branch

#45, 47, 49, St. 2004, Phum Tropaeng Chhouk,
Sangkat Orbeak Kaorm, Khan Sen Sok, Phnom Penh,
Cambodia

+855 23 231 548

+855 23 231 549

Pochentong Branch

#327, Russian Federation Blvd., Phum Paprork Khang
Cheung, Sangkhat Kakap, Khan Posenchey, Phnom
Penh, Cambodia

+855 23 890 805

+855 23 890 806

Russey Keo Branch

#8A-9A, National Road #5, Phum Mittapheap,
Sangkat Russey Keo, Khan Russey Keo, Phnom Penh,
Cambodia

+855 23 230 316

+855 23 230 317

Suon Ousahakam Branch

Veng Sreng St., Phum Trapeang Thloeung 2, Sangkat
Chomchao 1, Khan Posenchey, Phnom Penh,
Cambodia

+855 23 989 512

+855 23 989 513

Vimean Ekareach Branch
Chamkarmorn, Phnom Penh, Cambodia
+855 23212736

+855 23212 737

Saen Sokh Branch
No 229 & 231, Street 1003, Phum Bayab, Sangkat
Phnom Penh Thmei, Khan Saen Sokh, Phnom Penh.

Stueng Mean Chey Branch

No.7A & 8A, Monireth Blvd. (217). Damnak Thum
Village, Sangkat Stueng Mean Chey, Khan Mean
Chey Phnom Penh.

+855 23 902 328

+855 23 902 329

PROVINCIAL BRANCHES

Shift Il Branches (Monday to Sunday, 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM and Public Holidays)

Sihanouk Ville Branch

#355, Ekareach St., Phum 2, Sangkat 3, Krong Preah
Sihanouk, Preah Sihanouk Province, Cambodia
+855 34 933 490

+855 34 934 284

Kampot Branch

St. 701, Phum Kampong Bay Khang Tbong, Sangkat
Kampong Bay, Krong Kampot, Kampot Province,
Cambodia

+855 33 932 392

Siem Reap Sky Branch

Sivutha St., Phum Mondul 1, Sangkat Svay Dangkum,
Krong Siem Reap, Siem Reap Province, Cambodia
+855 63 761 905

+855 63 761 950

Battambang Branch

#11-13, The North of Phsar Nat, Phum Prek Mo-
hatep, Sangkat Svaypor, Krong Battambang, Battam-
bang Province, Cambodia

+855 53 952 267

+855 53 952 005

Shift | Branches (Monday to Friday, 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, and Saturday, 8:00 AM to

11:30 AM)

Angkor Arcade Branch

# AO05-A07, National Road #6, Phum Kruos, Sangkat
Svay Dangkum, Krong Siem Reap, Siem Reap Prov-
ince, Cambodia

+855 63 766 222

+855 63 766 333

Bavet Branch

National Road #1, Phum Bavet Kandal, Sangkat Bav-
et, Krong Bavet, Svay Rieng Province, Cambodia
+855 44 715 031

+855 44 715 032

Kampong Cham Branch

Preah Monivong St., Phum 7, Sangkat Kampong
Cham, Krong Kampong Cham, Kampong Cham
Province, Cambodia

+855 42 941 361

+855 42 941 362

Kampong Speu Branch

Phum Krangpultep, Sangkat Rokathom, Krong Ch-
barmorn, Kampong Speu Province, Cambodia
+855 25210 222

+855 25210 211

Koh Kong Branch

Phum 2, Sangkat Smach Meanchey, Krong Khemerak
Phoumin, Koh Kong Province, Cambodia

+855 35 936 787

+855 35 936 788

Banteay Meanchey Branch

#A07, A09, A11, A13, A15, Phum 3, Sangkat Preah
Ponlea, Krong Serey Sorphorn, Bantey Meanchey
Provnice, Cambodia

+855 54 711 072

+855 54 710 972

Borey Pheanichkam Battambang Branch
#A05-A07-A09, St. 153, Phum Kammekor, Sangkat
Svay Por, Krong Battambang, Battambang Province,
Cambodia

+855 53 731 667

+855 53 731 668

Kampong Chhnang Branch

National Road #5, Phum Lor Toek Trey, Sangkat
Kampong Chhnang, Krong Kampong Chhnang,
Kampong Chhnang Province, Cambodia

+855 26 770 017

+855 26 770 027

Kampong Thom Branch

National Road #6, Phum 2, Sangkat Kampong Thom,
Krong Stung Sen, Kampng Thom Provinve, Cambo-
dia

+855 62 961 787

+855 62 961 788

Kratie Branch

#427, Preah Soramrith St., Phum Kratie, Sangkat
Kratie, Krong Kratie, Kratie Province, Cambodia
+85572 971 222
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Maung Russey Branch

National Road #5, Phum Kansai Banteay, Khum
Maung, Srok Maung Russey, Battambang Province,
Cambodia

+855 53 217 233

Mondulkiri Branch

National Road #76, Phum Kandal, Sangkat Spean-
meanchey, Krong Sen Monorom, Mondulkiri Prov-
ince,

Cambodia

+855 73 638 8807

+855 73 638 8808

Oddor Meanchey Branch

St. 68B, Phum Samrong, Sangkat Samroang, Krong
Samrong, Oddar Meanchey Province, Cambodia
+855 65 622 3322

+855 65 622 4422

Poipet Branch

National Road #5, Phum Kbal Koh, Sangkat Poipet,
Krong Poipet, Banteay Meanchey Province, Cambo-
dia

+855 54 967 107

+855 54 218 399

Prey Nup Branch

#1F-03 (WAN HUA Center), Phum Pou Thoeung,
Khum Bet Trang, Srok Prey Nup, Preah Sihanouk
Province, Cambodia

+855 34 636 3301

+855 34 636 3302

Pursat Branch

National Road #5, Phum Sthany, Sangkat Svay Ath,
Krong Pursat, Pursat Province,

Cambodia

+855 52 740 287

+855 52 740 288

Siem Reap Phsar Leu Branch

No.119, National Road #6, Phum Banteay Chas,
Sangkat Slorkram, Krong Siem Reap, Siem Reap
Province,

Cambodia

+855 63 966 806

+855 63 966 807

Stung Treng Branch

Phum Kandal, Sangkat Stung Treng, Krong Stung
Treng, Stung Treng Province,

Cambodia

+855 74 210 566

+855 74 210 567

Memut Branch

National Road #7, Phum Memut Phsar, Khum
Memut, Srok Memut, Thbong Khmum Province,
Cambodia

+855 42 680 2222

+855 42 680 2223

Neak Loeung Branch

#591E, National Road #1, Phum Steung Slot, Khum
Neak Leoung, Srok Piamror, Prey Veng Province.
+855 43 750 222

+855 43 750 221

Pailin Branch

Group 3, Phum Pahi Tbong, Sangkat Pailin, Krong
Pailin, Pailin Province, Cambodia

+855 55 956 019

+855 55 956 020

Preah Vihear Branch

Koh Ker St., Phum Kandal, Khum Kampong Pronak,
Krong Preah Vihear, Preah Vihear Province, Cambo-
dia

+855 64 210 2325

+855 64 210 2326

Prey Veng Branch

National Road #11, Phum 7, Sangkat Kampong Leav,
Krong Prey Veng, Prey Veng Province, Cambodia
+855 43 210 460

+855 43 210 461

Ratanakiri Branch

Phum Chey Chumneah, Sangkat Labanseak, Krong
Banlung, Ratanakiri Province, Cambodia

+85575 974 158

+855 75 974 159

Skun Branch

National Road #6, Phum Pana, Khum Sotep, Srok
Cheung Prey, Kampong Cham Province, Cambodia
+855 42 680 0062

+855 42 680 0063

Suong Branch

National Road #7, Phum Cheung Lang, Sangkat
Suong, Krong Suong, Thbong Khmum Province,
Cambodia

+855 42 680 1111

+855 42 680 1112

Svay Rieng Branch

St. 208, Phum Veal Yun, Sangkat Svay Rieng, Krong
Svay Rieng, Svay Rieng

Province, Cambodia

+855 44 712 227

+855 44 712 228

Thmor Kol Branch

#19-20, National Road #5, Group 5, Phum Poiyung,
Khum Tapoung, Srok Thmor Kol, Battambang Prov-
ince, Cambodia

+855 53211 132

Takeo Branch

#91, St. 20, Phum Lory, Sangkat Rokar Knong, Krong
Donkeo, Takeo Province, Cambodia

+855 32 931 111

+855 32 931 700

Tram Kak District Branch Ang Ta Som Commune

National Road #3, Phum Prey Rumdeng, Khum Angk
Ta Saom, Srok Tram Kak, Takeo Province, Cambodia

+855 32215578

+855 32 215579

CANADIA BANK LAOS PDR BRANCHES (Monday to Friday, 8:00 AM to 03:30 PM)

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (Head Office)

Unit 7, Pangkham Road, Xiengnheun Village,
Chantabouly District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.
+85621 227 999

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (Dongchong Service Unit)
Sengsavang Village, Saysettha District, Vientiane
Capital, Lao PDR, (PTT Dongchong Gas Station).
+85621 463 345

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (Sanjiang Service Unit)

Wattainoithong Village, Sikhottabong District,
Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR, (SANJIANG SHOPPING
MALL).

+85621 256 279
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CORRESPONDENT BANK NAME CURRENCY SWIFT CODE LOCATION
BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS USD/RMB COMMCNSH SHANGHAI, CHINA
COMMERZBANK AG USD/ EUR COBADEFF FRANKFURT, GERMANY
DBS BANK LTD usb DBSSSGSG SINGAPORE
GUANGXI BEIBU GULF BANK CO.,LTD RMB BGBKCNBJ GUANGXI, CHINA
INDUSTRIAL BANK OF KOREA usb IBKOKRSE SEOUL , SOUTH KOREA
JOINT STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK FOR usb BFTVVNVX HANOI, VIETNAM
FOREIGN TRADE OF VIETNAM (HEAD OFFICE)
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. usb CHASUS33 NEW YORK, UNITED STATES
KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED USD/THB KASITHBK BANGKOK, THAILAND
KEB HANA BANK usb KOEXKRSE SEOUL , SOUTH KOREA
KOOKMIN BANK usb CZNBKRSE SEOUL , SOUTH KOREA
KRUNG THAI BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED USD/THB KRTHTHBK BANGKOK, THAILAND
MIZUHO BANK, LTD JPY MHCBJPJT TOKYO, JAPAN
NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK LTD HKD/USD NYCBHKHH HONG KONG
OVERSEA CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION USD/AUD/ OCBCSGSG SINGAPORE
LIMITED CAD/GBP/

NZD/SGB
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (HONG KONG) usb SCBLHKHH HONG KONG
LIMITED
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (New York Branch) usb SCBLUS33 NEW YORK, UNITED STATES
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (SINGAPORE) usb SCBLSG22 SINGAPORE
LIMITED
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (Tokyo Branch) JPY SCBLJPJT TOKYO, JAPAN
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK GERMANY EUR SCBLDEFX FRANKFURT, GERMANY
BRANCH
UNITED OVERSEAS BANK LIMITED usb UOVBSGSG SINGAPORE
WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A NEWYORK INTERNA- usb PNBPUS3NNYC NEW YORK, UNITED STATES

TIONAL BRANCH
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Canadia Bank Plc.
No. 315, Ang Doung St.Corner Monivong Blvd,
Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

E-mail: contact@canadiabank.com.kh
Website: www.canadiabank.com.kh

Tel: +855 (0) 23 868 222

© 2023 Canadia Bank Plc.




